Editorial:
‘NOTHING WILL CHANGE’

National Conference (NC) is back to power with a photogenic face to head the government. The party has earlier ruled the conflict torn state during 1996 to 2002. During its 6 year tenure, massive human rights violations bordering crimes against humanity were committed in the state. We should recollect the past. 

Shortly, after taking over the govt. on August 11, 1996, the then Chief Minister of NC Dr. Farooq Abdullah thanked renegades (perpetrators) for making the polls possible and publicly stated that he was proud of them. Further, he stated, “Those who surrender will be welcome in the mainstream and those who do not have to die.” This statement invited international condemnations, as it constituted a war crime. He didn’t stop here. On 13 January 2001, Farooq Abdullah said, “I don’t want to fill jails. My orders to police are, wherever you find a militant dispatch him.” It was a license to the extra judicial killings. The SOG constituted during Farooq’s govt. became more dreaded than the Rashtriya Rifles. He further added “make the final push and finish the matter, I told Prime Minister.” He become more loyal than the king, he had often advocated aar paar war with Pakistan.  He also threatened, “I will break (their) necks and if there is any need of diverting the entire Indian army towards Kashmir, it would be done.” When human rights violations were rampant in early nineties the chief of the NC then out of power went to Geneva, Vienna and United Nations on behalf of the Indian government to defend the state terrorism and to justify the excess committed by the state. After losing power in 2002, the party in opposition started harping on human rights violation issues like other political parties in opposition. 

The incumbent chief minister, Omar Abdullah before coming to power flouted the idea of Truth and Reconciliation Commission (TRC) on the pattern of TRC of post Apartheid South Africa to investigate into the human rights violations and for reparations. On March 26, 2003, while in opposition, a private member’s resolution was moved by two NC MLAs, Abdul Rahim Rather and Ali Mohammad Sagar demanding setting up of a judicial commission to look into the cases of enforced disappearances and custodial killings. The only issue for NC in opposition was human rights and nothing else. Now they are in power. Will they do it?  

After coming back to power, is NC going to make any difference this time? Has the party learnt any lesson from its past mistakes? Will it be really serious in minimizing the human rights violations in the state, if not stopping it altogether? NC govt. has been advocating dynastic rule like other leading political organizations in Asia, which are only interested in power. The party’s only interest is to retain power and to perpetuate the rule; it can go to any extent for it. Not to speak of NC, no mainstream political party even with comfortable majority can rein upon the security forces. Notwithstanding, the Unified Headquarters Command is headed by the Chief Minster as a figurative head, the security related sensitive matters are controlled by the Indian state, federal institutions and think tanks like National Security Advisor Board (NSAB), National Security Council and of course the Cabinet Committee for Security (CCS), the decision making body of the Govt. of India (GOI). These institutions are controlling the army and security related issues. No govt. in J&K has audacity to exercise the powers vested to it, which will be in confrontation to these institutions or their policies. Every govt. is conscious of its limitations and cannot cross the red line. Even in the matter of probes and investigations they have self-imposed limitations. After the Pandian Commission report was released, which investigated into the firing incident at Barakpora, the NC under tremendous pressure from Sikh community decided to investigate into the Chattisingpora massacre. It was turned down by the federal government, as the truth would embarrass the Indian government internationally. Nevertheless, the state had the powers to conduct enquiry under the Commission of Enquiry Act, but it didn’t push it further, as NC or another political party has a history of not confronting the Indian federal government, even on the issues which are non-political in nature. The present CM as State Minister for Foreign Affairs in Union of India instead of resigning in protest against Gujarat genocide condoned the then BJP government’s role. The optimism from some quarters about the new Chief Minster, believing he can make some difference would be premature and uncalled for. The same optimism was made when People’s Democratic Party and Congress or NC ruled the state in past as Civilian Governments took charge after Governor’s and President’s rule. It is not the party or the individual that matters; there are structural issues. There are scant reasons to be optimistic about the improvement in the human rights situation by appointing a new face with impeccable past. There only job is to make themselves available to GOI for maintaining status quo in Jammu Kashmir.  

Unfortunately, human rights violations shall continue unabatedly, only Indian state can rein upon the perpetrators. GOI shall be compelled to stop it by externalizing the human rights violations and pressurizing it from the international community, institutions and the civil society of India. It is bound to happen.  

There is no reason to be optimistic about NC taking over reigns. Already, the grievances of the people from last 20 years are snowballing. The frozen anger against injustice needs only a spark to explode. 

TALE OF YOUTH FROM DISAPPEARANCE TO FAKE ENCOUNTER

POLICE CLAIMS THE SLAIN, A PAKISTANI MILITANT BUT LATER ACKNOWLEDGES HIM A LOCAL

Last year when hundreds and thousands of Kashmiris were on the streets demanding the right to self-determination, twenty-six-year old, Afaq Ahmad Bhat son Mohammad Shafi of Edipora Bomai, Sopore district Baramulla disappeared on August 23, 2008.  This year on January 28, army and police claimed that they had killed two Pakistani militants of Jaish-e-Muhammad (JeM) in an encounter at Bandipora. On Jan 31, body of one of the deceased was exhumed from a grave and identified to be the body of Afaq Ahmad, which was subsequently handed over to his family.

Shortly, after the incident a reporter of The Informative Missive visited the Bomai area and talked to the relatives of the slain.

Mohammad Shafi Bhat father of Afaq Ahmad while speaking to this reporter said,”On August 23, 2008 my son after offering mid-day prayers went to Bomai market and didn’t return. Perturbed, we start searching him in the whole area but couldn’t find him. Next day, we visited and contacted all our relatives and Afaq’s friends but did not get any clue. Then on August 25, we filed a missing report with police post Bomai. Divisional officer, Tanveer Ahmad of the concerned police post assured us that he would trace my son.” 

He added, “After my son’s disappearance the Major of 22 RR (camped in the outskirts of our village) called me about five times. The Major asked strange questioned, is any of Afaq’s friend involved in his disappearance? Or had he any enmity with any person? I replied, neither any of his friends can do this nor he had any enmity with anyone. He was amiable and commands a good respect in the entire locality. He was never involved in any criminal or anti-social activity. The Major took me to the Sector Headquarter of RR located at Watlab, where a high rank official enquired about my son’s whereabouts. I replied that I am myself worried about his welfare.”

“Afaq was often harassed by the troopers of 22 RR camped in Bomai, since he engaged himself in preaching Islam and associated with Jamiat-e-Ahlehadees (a religious group). He organized many Islamic seminars in the village. In addition, he actively participated in mass agitation during Amarnath Land row. He participated in all the rallies like Muzaffarabad Challo, Eidgah Challo marches etc. Even he was one of the persons who coordinated the youth of village to protest against the atrocities perpetrated by the troopers during the land row. When the entire valley was under incessant curfew, he played instrumental role in collecting rice and vegetables from the whole area and distributed that among the needy in Srinagar. Afaq’s such activities were taken seriously by the security agencies deployed in our area and next day after Eidgah Challo march his identity card was taken away by the Major of 22 RR. He was called to the camp, where he was detained till evening and was released on certain conditions. Even many a times, the army threatened and directed him not to participate in the activities against the interest of troopers. This made us skeptical about army’s involvement in Afaq disappearance”, brother-in-law of the deceased revealed.

For four months, the family moved from pillar to post to search Afaq but to no avail. Eventually, the families search ended with the news that their son has been killed in an encounter at Ayatmullah, Bandipora along with another alleged militant. 

“After four month’s continuous search, on the evening of January 30, the Sub-Inspector of the concerned police post informed me about the killing of Afaq. I got shocked on hearing this. Without telling my family, next day, I rushed to Bandipora police station along with some of my relatives. There we requested police to show the photographs of the militants killed in the encounter. Soon the police displayed the photographs; I quickly identified my son’s photo. It was most terrible moment of my life. The police officials also told me that my son had joined militancy and got killed in an encounter. After obtaining the permission from the Deputy Commissioner Bandipora we exhumed the body, brought it to our village and buried it in our native graveyard”, said aggrieved father. 

Mohammad Shafi further added, “I can say with full authority that neither my son was involved in militancy nor he did any adverse activity throughout his life. After he finished his graduation in 2007, he started to run a readymade garment shop in the village. Apart from that he also remained associated with philanthropic and religious work. His participation in religious activities and mass agitation 2008 irritated the security agencies. We have enough reasons to believe that he was first subjected to disappearance and subsequently killed in fake encounter. Had Afaq gone to join militancy he could have surely informed my wife or me since he was a dutiful son, seeks permission for anything he do.”
According to the media reports regarding the incident, police stated that the combat party of army and police killed two militants identified as, “Shakeel Ganja and Abu Bakr of Jaish-e-Muhammad outfit” in the gunfight. Police initially labeled Afaq as Shakeel Ganja of Pakistan but later accepted his identity to that of Afaq Ahmad of Bomai Sopore. Labeling Afaq as a foreign militant made his relatives skeptical.  

ARMY KILLS DEAF AND DUMB MAN 

Fourty-year-old, deaf and dumb man was shot dead by the army guarding the high security Gupkar Road, Srinagar on January 6. The alleged murder triggered a massive demonstration in the victim’s native village, Veer Saran Pahalgam in south Kashmir’s Anantnag district.

Police said it has started investigation to “establish the circumstances that led to the killing.” Army has ordered an inquiry into the killing and to investigate the “possibility of his carrying out reconnaissance with the aim of launching a Fidayeen (suicidal) attack.” 

However, the victim’s family strongly refuted the allegations saying, “Army wants to justify the murder.”

 
Police said the incident occurred when the 40-year-old, Abdur Rashid Reshi son of late Abdul Ahad Reshi crossed main gate of the Commander 31 Sub Area’s residence on Gupkar Road. The troopers fired several bullets at Reshi, killing him on the spot. Pertinently, the houses of many VIPs, including Chief Minister Omar Abdullah and NC president Dr Farooq Abdullah is few hundreds metres away from the spot. The Senior Superintendent of Police, Srinagar, Syed Afadul Mujtaba, confirmed the deceased was deaf and dumb. 

“Preliminary investigations revealed that the person crossed the barbed wires, scaled the boundary wall and entered the Army camp. As the deceased was hard of hearing, he crossed the two gates despite being challenged. Mistaking him as a militant, the troopers fired upon him resulting in his death,” the SSP said.

 
The SSP said no weapon was recovered from the deceased. “Only a kangri (firepot) was found on the spot. We have started investigation under 174 Cr PC to establish the circumstances of which led to the death. We will register a case after it is established during the course of investigation that it was a custodial killing or fake encounter. At this point of time, it seems to be a case of mistaken identity,” the SSP said.

 Army’s Srinagar-based Defence spokesman in a statement said, the Army guard at the residential compound of Commander 31 Sub Area on Gupkar Road, Srinagar fired at an “intruder” who scaled over rear boundary wall of the compound and entered its premises at about 10 pm on January 6.  

“The intruder despite being challenged repeatedly by the sentries did not stop and continued to run towards the residence. The sentries then fired on the individual resulting in his death. The incident was immediately reported to the police.  The SP, SDPO and SHO immediately rushed to the area and the body was handed over to the police who are investigating the matter,” it said.

 
“The intruder was identified as Abdul Rashid Reshi, son of Abdul Ahad Reshi, resident of Veer Saran, Pahalgam.  The Army has also ordered a high level inquiry into the incident. While the intention of the individual is not clear at this juncture, the possibility of his carrying out reconnaissance with the aim of launching a fidayeen attack at a later date cannot be ruled out and the same is also being examined by the inquiry instituted into the case,” the statement added.

 
After post-mortem, Reshi’s body was handed over to his relatives. When the body reached his native village, hundreds of people took to streets and staged demonstrations against the killing. The body was laid to rest amidst pro-freedom and anti-India slogans.

 “Reshi had gone to City on Jan 6. But we were shocked to receive his bullet ridden body. Eight bullets had pierced his arms, legs and back…,” Reshi’s brother, Ghulam Qadir Reshi said and broke down.

 “My brother was innocent and has been killed in cold-blood. Army is trying to hush up the case by labelling my brother as an intruder. We want the accused troopers should be punished,” he said. 

 
Visibly in shock, Reshi’s sister, Zaina said, “despite being physically challenged, he worked hard to support the family. The killer troopers have snatched our beloved,” she said.

On January 8, an official spokesman said the scene of occurrence was actually near the residence of a former chief minister and outside that of Army’s 31-Sub-Area Commander. The Army has ordered a high-level enquiry into the incident and the chief minister was personally monitoring the probe. He said the civil administration is not involved in the incident. 
ALLEGED FIRING BY RR MEN

INJURED ReT TEACHER SUCCUMBS IN JAMMU

A Rehbar-e-Taleem (ReT) teacher, who was allegedly fired upon by troopers at Kukrewas, 20 Kilometers away from District Head Quarters in December 2008, died at the Government Medical College Hospital, Doda.

Police sources said gunmen, alleged to be army troops, came to the house of Ghulam Hussain Wani at Kakras Sarsi on December 13, 2008 following a tip-off that two militants had taken shelter there. The moment Wani’s wife Halima (60) opened the door, the troops fired, resulting in her instant death and serious injuries to her 40-year-old son Mohammad Aslam and daughter-in-law Rahida.

The troops carried out a thorough search of the house, but there was no militant inside, the sources added, saying they later left the spot. Some of the army jawans did not allow the villagers to shift the injured to the hospital in the night and after protest by the villagers, the injured were shifted to the District Hospital Doda in the morning by the villagers where doctors pronounced the woman as brought dead.

Aslam was referred to the GMC Hospital in view of his deteriorating condition. His condition continued to deteriorate and he succumbed to his wounds on Jan 16.The body, after postmortem, was shifted to the native village of the deceased for burial.

In his statement to police, Aslam had stated that it were the troops of 4 Rashtriya Rifles (RR) who had fired on him and his mother. Mohammad Aalam while narrating the incident to media at District Hospital Doda on December 13, 2008 said that at 10:30 PM some gunmen knocked at their door.

On being asked about their identity they replied that they are army personnel. He said that on their refusal to open the door, the army personnel headed by Company Commander Raj Shekhar from 4 RR opened firing on the door and windows of their house resulting on the on spot death of Haleema Begum and injuries to Mohammad Aslam, son of Ghulam Hussain Wani and his wife Rahida.

Concerned army officers, then said that operation was launched jointly by 4 RR and STF Souranda at 8:30 PM on December 13 night following information of presence of two ultras in the house of Ghulam Hussain Wani. The militants opened fire and it was effectively retaliated. The militants managed to escape from the spot.

Police, however, claimed that some unknown persons knocked the door of Mohammad Aslam at Sarsee Kukras, under the jurisdiction of police post Khelani in Doda district and fired upon them, resulting in on the spot death of Haleema Begum and injuries to Mohammad Aslam son of Ghulam Hussain Wani and Rahida Begum.

2 TA MEN KIDNAP GIRL

On January 3, a girl student was kidnapped by the troopers of Territorial Army (TA), Fayaz Ahmad Lone and Reyaz Ahmad Lone of Sanzipora Handwara on gunpoint, while she was outside her home, a police report said.


Police has registered a case against troopers for kidnapping the girl. They have arrested TA men but failed to recover the girl.

Police said that a hunt was launched to rescue the girl. “We sent a police party even to Tangdhar for search,” police said.

The police confirmed that Fayaz and Reyaz are TA troopers associated with 161 Battalion Gantmulla and have made the lives of people of Handwara a hell. Superintendent of Police Handwara told media that the case will be investigated thoroughly.

Not only the locals of Sanizipora, but the people surrounding villages have demanded termination of both the brothers from TA as they have brought a bad name to the army. “Army is a big institution. They do one or the other wrong at gun point in the name of army,” said a resident adding, “No one is in a position to complain as they fear retribution from the TA personnel.”

The residents have appealed top army brass to get them rid of the duo. “They eve tease our daughters in front of us at gun point and there is no one to listen,” the residents told media over phone from Sanzipora.

Meanwhile PRO defence said army is investigating the kidnapping case and those found guilty would be taken to task.

 
“Family members of the girl (name withheld) registered a complaint with police alleging the TA trooper Fayaz Ahmed abducted their daughter three weeks ago from their house on gunpoint and her whereabouts yet to be known.” A police official told media FIR No. 4/09 has been registered under section 366 and 109 RPC.  

The Sub Divisional Police Officer, Handwara, Ghulam Jeelani Wani, said that police had already arrested two brothers. “We have raided many places and efforts are on to recover the girl,” Jeelani added. 

Ghulam Rasool, uncle of the victim said, “Fayaz along with his accomplices barged into our house in the first week of January and abducted our daughter. We tried to resist but couldn’t stop them, as they were heavily armed.”

Sharifuddin Pir, father of the victim, said that from the day his daughter went missing they had visited many places to locate her but their search had borne no fruit. “But we couldn’t go inside the army camps. We believe that they (TA) might have kept her in one of the camps. I have written a letter to defense minister seeking his intervention,” he said.

The incident has shocked the villagers of Sanzipora and adjoining areas. The people are demanding stern action against the trooper. 

“Our mothers and daughters are not safe. First, the government gunmen used to unleash terror, now TA men have made our lives miserable,” said Nazir Ahmed, a local.

The villagers alleged that since the day family members of the victim registered the case, army had been harassing them. “For the past three weeks, troopers have searched our homes thrice to intimidate us to withdraw the case,” a resident, wishing anonymity, alleged.

Reports said that some TA men had approached Handwara police to show the victim as missing so that the accused troopers get exonerated.

HIGHEST NUMBER OF DISAPPEARANCES IN NC RULE: APDP
On January 28, the Association of Parents of Disappeared Persons (ADP) during its monthly sit-in alleged that the highest number of Kahsmiris disappeared during the National Conference (NC) rule. 

The APDP’s press statement reads:

The highest number of cases of enforced or involuntary disappearances (EID) took place from 1990 to 2002 during which National Conference (NC) ruled the state of Jammu & Kashmir from 1996-2002. A huge number of persons were subjected to enforced disappearance during the NC government by the various law enforcing agencies. 

While in opposition, a private member’s resolution was moved by two NC MLAs, Abdul Rahim Rather and Ali Mohammad Sagar demanding the setting up of a judicial commission to look into the cases of EID and custodial killings which the then Law Minister, Muzaffar Hussain Beig rejected. NC then accused the PDP-Congress Government of betraying the people by not appointing the enquiry commission. 

Chief Minister of Jammu & Kashmir Mr. Omar Abdullah (then NC President) on May 2, 2008, while talking to the media in Srinagar put the number of EID at 4000. Mr. Abdullah reiterated his demand for a Truth and Reconciliation Commission (TRC). In the same press conference he said, “once the issue (phenomenon) of EID is probed the exact number of disappeared people would be known.” He also acknowledged that the issue of unmarked and nameless graves had taken center-stage and it is imperative that the issue would be looked into. He further stated, “Once the TRC is set up it should be asked to probe the same, so that the identity of the people buried in these unmarked graves is established”. 

Unfortunately soon after Mr. Abdullah came to power he backtracked on the plea that Indian and Pakistani governments should approve TRC. 

The demand of the Association of Parents of Disappeared Persons (APDP) since 1998, for constituting a commission under the Commissions of Enquiry Act has not been considered by the governments. Apparently enforced disappearance is an issue of the political parties till they are in the opposition be it PDP, NC etc. but after assuming the power they prefer forgetting their own promises and thus siding with the perpetrators. 

The victims and survivors of desaparecidos are urging the government to probe all the cases of EID as has happened in other countries. The case in point is of Nepal where Supreme Court directed the state to appoint a commission to probe the cases of human rights violations.

The Government of India after the Mumbai terrorist attack became hysteric and galvanized the world opinion against the perpetrators and its supporters for seeking justice for the victims. The govt. so far have done nothing. But as far the mass and nameless graves are concerned which was taken seriously by the international organizations and even the European Parliament passed a resolution on July 10, 2008 urging Government of India to enquire into the issue of nameless / mass graves found in 18 villages of Uri district. 

While the India state failed to come clear on the issue of nameless and mass graves, the police and army rejected the report, terming it baseless without any investigations. 

The activists of APDP locating nameless and unmarked graves are being harassed, detained and attacked. It speaks that how human rights of the people of Jammu & Kashmir have been compromised and how the international concerns are being ignored, when the state terrorism comes under scrutiny. APDP believes that the perpetrators of any terrorist act, state or non-state, should be similarly accounted for and perpetrators have to be taken to justice. 

TORTURE TESTIMONIES

1. Name: Showket Ali Rather.

S/O: Mohammad Yousuf Rather.

R/O: Hajin.

Occupation: Shopkeeper.

Age: 45 years.

Civilian/Militant: Civilian.

Date of interview: 31/01/2008.

Showket Ali claims that he was picked up several times by renegades and Indian forces on the pretext of providing shelter to the militants. He said that they picked and tortured him only to extract money from him, as he owned a carpet weaving center where he was doing good business. 

He said,” I was first picked up by renegades in 1994 from my home. They took me to other village where they put me into somebody’s house for one night. They beat me there for about one hour for the alleged possession of weapon, which was only the false charge to extract money from me. Next day, they released me after taking five thousand rupees cheque from me. After that I was again picked up by renegades commanded by Master Ghulam Mohammad Wagay, in 1995.  They picked me from my carpet center and took me to another village into Abdul Aziz’s house for a night where I was tortured severely. They kept me naked whole night and beat me with bamboo sticks and iron rods. They also applied hot iron rod at several spots on my back. After that they dunked my head into the water bucket having chilli powder mixed with it. After I took lot of water they trampled my back with which the water came out through my mouth again. Next morning, they handed me over to other members of their outfit who took me to Gudbone Village. I was taken to Abdul Khaliq Shah’s house where I was kept for six days and severely tortured. I was tortured twice daily for one hour each by another outfit commander Changis Khan. He beat me with bamboo sticks and pushed my head into the water having chilli powder mixed with it. They did not tell anything to my family regarding my whereabouts. But during the time they demanded Rs. 75,000/- from them in return of my release. My family was ready to give them the money but I conveyed them not to give any money to them otherwise I would run from my home and join armed struggle.  On sixth day some internal conflict emerged in their outfit and they released me. After my release I did not tell anything to my family about torture on first day. But next day, my younger daughter saw my bruised back and she told to other family members about this. I was later taken to a hospital where I was treated for several days. After that they started coming to my home to harass me on trivial pretexts. They looted my carpet house and broke window panes of my house. Fearing that they may kill me somewhere, I remained away from my home for about six months. During the time my father, Mohammad Yousuf died of heart attack and my business ruined. The relatives and neighbourers even did not allow my family members to come to their home, fearing that they may also get harassed by renegades. My 12-year-old brother was also once picked up by the renegades and was released after ruthless torture. I returned back to my home after six months. For about six years, after that I did not do any work, I stayed inside my home and did not prefer to move out of my home. We spent all these years under poverty and constant threat. We several times did not have anything to eat. After six years with the help of my relative, I started to run a medical shop at Sumbal, but after five months I was again picked up by the STF from the shop and taken to STF camp, Sumbal where I was detained for two days. The STF tortured me severely during those two days. I was beaten all over, roller was applied over my legs and electric current was applied to private parts of my body. After two days, due to the intervention of some persons who were closely associated with STF and I was released. But after my release one of the renegades told me to close my shop at Sumbal. So I had to close the shop due to which medicine worth Rs. 50,000/- got destroyed.  I did not do any work for nine months. After that I took another shop on rent at my own village soon I start it, I was again picked up by army (RR regiment led by major Roa) they took me with them to Hajin camp and during the time the renegades ransacked my house and dug the floor of its rooms. On reaching the camp the army major told me that the order of picking you up has come from Delhi. That time the chief of renegades, Kuka Parray was at Delhi. The major offered me Rs. 30,000/- to become their informer but I refused. Meanwhile, they had to go somewhere for encounter and I got released but the major told me to come on camp again next day. Next day, I went to camp along with my brother. I told everything to him about my condition. After hearing my story he released me and assured me that nobody would harm me henceforth. So I started medical shop in my own village. But after three years in 2005, I was picked again by STF from my shop and taken to Ganderbal camp.  I was detained there for six days and subsequently tortured by DSP Parihar. He beat my whole body with bamboo sticks and broke my both knees and elbows. Several interrogators also pulled and stretched my legs apart in opposite direction which developed abrasions under my thighs. They also pulled my arms in backward direction and broke my shoulders.  DSP Parihar also threatened to kill me in fake encounter. He wanted to implicate me in false case and send me to jail. But due to intervention of some person who was associated with army, they released me after six days. At the time of release DSP Parihar told me that I was released only due to that person otherwise I had to go jail. During the time my family was not allowed to meet me. “ 

2. Name: Zai-ud-din Dar.

S/O: Mohammad Ramzan Dar.

R/O: Dangerpora.

Occupation: Shopkeeper.

Age: 35 years.

Militant/Civilian: Militant. 

 
Zai-ud-din went to Muzaffarabad for arms training in 1989 and returned in 1990 after ten months. He remained active for three years with Al Jihad militant outfit. He was arrested by 5- Guard Regiment after they raided the house in which he was hidden. He was later taken to different army camps and jails where he claims that he was tortured.

 
Zai said, “I was hidden in some house in my native village along with five other companions when the 5-Guard Regiment after acting on a tip off cordoned the house and arrested all of us. We were all without weapon so there was no exchange of fire. They took us into separate rooms of a same house and tortured us. They first removed all my clothes and beat me with gun butts. After that they dunked my head into the water bucket several times for 2 to 3 minutes every time. They also peppered chili powder into my eyes and applied electric current on my private parts. They after that poured water over cemented floor and forcing me to lean on it and applied electric current to my toes and tongue for about half an hour. After that they lighted the stove and put it beneath my thighs three times, every time for two minutes which created deep scars under my thighs. They also put cigarette bits over my shoulders and back. They later tied my feet with rope and suspended me upside down from ceiling and simultaneously beat my soles. As I feared they would do something worse, I gave them my weapon. After that they took me to Ganjoo House Sopore where I was detained for 25 days. They did not torture me on first day. Next day, in the morning they tied my hands and put me into the small room along with two big reared dogs for half an hour. They bit and scratched my whole body. After that they put me into another room along with hundreds of rats for an hour. They also bit my body. In order to escape myself from them I covered myself with dirty ragged quilt which was lying inside the room. For next two days they did not torture me. They put me into small room where I was taken out twice in a day but during night I was handcuffed and blindfolded.  After two days they took me out for the torture, they tied a big stone over my back, tied long rope to my neck and put me into water in a deep ditch. Due to weight of stone, I went deep into the water but after few minutes I was pulled out by a person on the bank who was carrying other end of rope. This continued for about half an hour. After taking me out, they closed my nostrils and poured down 5 to 6 liters of water through my mouth. As my stomach enlarged due to excess intake of water they kicked and trampled my stomach due to which the whole water came out through mouth again. After that they tied a cloth around the tip of a stick and inserted it deep into stomach through mouth several times with which blood started oozing out of my mouth. After that they dragged me on the ground and put me again into the room. Next day, they put me into a vehicle and took me to Sopore Main Chowk where I was asked to identify any militant among the people in the market. They kept me there for whole day but I did not identify anybody. After that they did not torture me again for next five days. After five day they tortured me mentally by asking confusing questions during interrogation. My family was allowed to meet me once there after 20 days. I was given insufficient food there and was forced to clean utensils and sweep the floor. After 25 days, I was shifted to JIC Baramulla for 8 months, I was not tortured there but I was kept in small room along with 35 other detainees. It was difficult to sleep inside the room and there was only single bathroom for all the detainees so we used to defecate in polythene bags. From here I was shifted to Udampur jail for three years. I was not tortured there. After three years I was released but was re-arrested on the gate of the jail where from I was taken to Kot Bhalwal jail for one year and then to Rangreth Srinagar for two months. Later I was released from there. I did not join armed struggle again but after that I had to go to army camp for Haziri (report) every week. I almost reported in every camp of the area-Watlab, Warpora, Seelu, Sopore, Bomai etc.  At every camp I was every time harassed on trivial issues and forced to do laborious work like cutting grass, cleaning utensils, cleaning drains and bathrooms etc. At Warpora camp we (ex-militants) were forced to crawl on road for long distances through the village and the villagers were force to taunt and spit upon us.”   

TEENAGER TORTURED TO DEATH IN BANDIPORA

LOCALS BLAME ARMY; BOY WAS NOT SUMMONED TO CAMP: CO

Jan 31: Residents of Vewan, 30 kms from Bandipora accused army personnel of torturing a teenager to death. The deputy commissioner, Bandipora said that the authorities will look into the matter.

One of the close relative of the deceased, Mushtaq Ahmad (name changed) told media that my cousin Ali Mohammad Bhat and his father, Ghulam Rasool Bhat hailing for Vewan were summoned by 51 RR personnel stationed in the village on January 29. “One son of Bhat is a militant and camping in Pakistan administered Kashmir. The father-son duo were detained and brutally tortured in the camp for the night”, he said.

 Mushtaq said, “The next day Ghulam Rasool Bhat was released and he reached his home in a very bad shape. The troopers, however, did not release Ali Mohammad Bhat and instead handed over his body, bearing torture marks, to the villagers on January 31”. He alleged that the army personnel directed the family members not to let anybody know about the incident. “They threatened us of dire consequences in case we reported the incident to the media,” he said.

Mushtaq accused the troopers of forcing them to sign the documents wherein ‘clean chit’ was given to army.” The army laid siege around the entire village and did not allow anybody to move out for couple of days,” he said.

The tension is prevailing in the hamlet and the villagers are demanding thorough probe into the killing.

The Commanding Officer of 51 RR told media that they had not summoned the duo to their camp. He, however, while confirming the death of the 18-year-old youth said, “Due to a prolonged illness, Ali Muhammad died while being shifted to hospital in Bonkoot.” The army officer said that army has nothing to do with his killing.

Meanwhile, District Commissioner, Sheikh Mushtaq said, “We will look into the matter”. He advised the family members and relatives of the deceased youth to register a case in the police station so that investigations will be taken up.

The SP Bandipora Sheikh Junaid said that police has not received any complaints from the villagers about the killing of youth by army personnel. “We will send a police party to the village to look into the matter,” he added.

HUMAN RIGHTS ABUSE WILL BE DEALT WITH IRON HANDS

NEW SHRC CHIEF PROMISES SPEEDY JUSTICE TO VICTIMS

January 1: To enforce a check on misuse of powers by police, army, and paramilitary troopers, the newly appointed chairperson of State Human Rights Commission, (Retd) Justice Bashir-ud-Din said the law will act against those found violating human rights.

Justice Bashir-ud-Din stressed for disseminating education about human rights among the security agencies operating in the state and assured speedy justice to the victims.  The chairperson said it is imperative in a democratic set-up to respect of human rights.

 
“Due to political unrest in Kashmir the troops and cops are in close contact with the masses and sometimes they deliberately or accidentally commit violations of human rights. We want to make it clear that the Commission won’t tolerate any violation and if the involvement of the troops and cops is established, action under law would be taken against them irrespective of status or rank,” the chairperson told media.

 “Let people who feel that their human rights have been violated approach us. Our doors are always open for them. We will get the complaint probed by our investigating agency and take action accordingly. For the Commission, everybody is equal before law,” he said. 

The chairperson believes that violations by men in uniform takes place mainly due to lack of human rights education. “It is high time to spread awareness of human rights among the security agencies operating in Kashmir. Let us at least acquaint them about the rights of common people. The security forces have to act as defenders and protectors of law and show utmost respect human rights while discharging their professional duties,” he said.

 However, he maintained that the Commission is a recommendatory body. “After investigating the case, we can only give recommendations to the Government and ensure its implementation. For speedy dissemination of justice, all the administration including respective deputy commissioners, IGPs, Tehsildars, Home department, bureaucrats have to act as nodal agency for implementation of our recommendations,” the chairperson said. 
PSA MIGHTIER THEN CM’S PROMISE

MASRAT ALAM, BITTA KARATE, NANAJI, BILAL SIDIQUI DETAINED UNDER THE ACT

Jan 22: The NC-led coalition is yet to complete a fortnight in office. The chief minister Omar Abdullah had promised that political prisoners with “no heinous charges” against them would be released. But the district administration has issued orders sanctioning detention of four pro-freedom leaders who have already spent years in jails. 

 A source in the office of Deputy Commissioner, Srinagar, said the DC on Jan 21 signed the PSA order against secretary of Coordination Committee and Hurriyat leader Masrat Alam Bhat, and JKLF leaders Farooq Ahmad Dar alias Bitta Karate, Muhammad Rafique Pahlo alias Nanaji, and Bilal Sidiqui. Under the PSA a person can be detained up to two years without a trial. Farooq Ahmad Dar was released in 2006 after 17 years of detention. Sidique was released a year ago after spending 13 years in different Indian jails.  Masarat Alam has been in and out of jails for most part of his active political life.

 The police dossier of one of the four detainees, reads: “In order to overcome the menace of terrorism and secessionism a holistic approach is needed wherein besides legal action preventive detention will be a very effective tool against the persons having potential, will, commitment, and urge to challenge the integrity and sovereignty of the State.”

The High Court Bar Association president Mian Abdul Qayoom told media that Bar would challenge the detention in the Court.

 On 19 September 2008 Masrat Alam Bhat, Muhammad Saleem Nanaji, Farooq Ahmad Dar were arrested during agitation against the transfer of forest land to Amarnath Shrine Board and booked under the PSA. On 8 January 2008 the High Court quashed their detention. Bilal Sidiqui was arrested after elections.

 On January 17 Sidqui was allowed by the Court to meet his mother who was admitted in the SMHS hospital. On January 18, he was granted interim bail by the Duty Magistrate Srinagar. But police didn’t release him and on January 22 he, along with the other three, was shifted to Udhampur jail.  

    Sources said in 2008, 367 cases of the PSA were challenged in the high court and the Court disposed off 307 cases. For past four months 180 petitions challenging the PSA have been instituted in the High Court.


COURT ISSUES NOTICES TO GUV ADMINISTRATION

‘FILE OBJECTIONS IN SHABIR SHAH’S CASE’

Jan 2: The Jammu and Kashmir High court issued notices to governor’s administration for slapping Public Safety Act against the senior Hurriyat leader, Shabir Ahmed Shah, for second time. The Court also quashed the PSA of five persons, including the JKLF (R) leader, Farooq Ahmed Dar alias Bita Karatey and an AJK resident.   

The president of Kashmir Bar Association, Mian Abdul Qayoom, who represented Shah, informed the court that he (Shah) had been taken into custody on August 30 and was booked under PSA. He was shifted to Central Jail Srinagar. 

“Justice Hakeem Imtiyaz Hussain quashed the PSA of Shah on December 8, and ordered his immediate release,” Qayoom said, adding, “Instead of releasing my client governor’s administration shifted him to Baramulla and lodged him in Boniyar Police Station. The principal secretary home ordered his arrest under Public Safety Act once again on the same charges which were leveled against him earlier.”

After hearing the arguments of the defence council, Justice Muhammad Yousuf Mir issued notices to principal secretary home and the superintendent of police—prisons, directing them to file objections in the case within two weeks.

Meanwhile the Court quashed the PSA of five detainees and ordered their immediate release. The advocate Muhammad Ashraf Wani while pleading the cases of Muhammad Asif Khan of AJK, Farooq Ahmed Dar alias Bita Kartey, Muhammad Rafiq Pehlu, Muhammad Ayub and Hilal Ahmed War termed the detention of his clients as “illegal,” after hearing the arguments of the defence and prosecution, Justice Muhammad Yousuf Mir quashed the PSA of the detainees and ordered their immediate release. 

OMAR ORDERS RELEASE OF 15 DETAINEES

PSA REVOKED AGAINST AYAZ AKBAR, NOOR MUHAMMAD KALWAL, OTHERS

Jan 16: The government revoked with “immediate effect” the detention of 15 people detained under Public Safety Act (PSA) for participating in demonstrations.

 Among the detainees to be released are Muhammad Akbar Khanday alias Ayaz Akbar, the spokesman of Hurriyat Conference (G) and senior JKLF leader Noor Muhammad Kalwal. Omar told reporters on Jan 15, that his government was actively considering release of PSA detainees. On his orders, the Government revoked detention of 15 PSA detainees, an official spokesman said.

 The detainees are Parvaiz Ahmad Bhat son of Ghulam Ahmad of Sindu Shirmal, Shopian; Nissar Ahmad Najar son of Abdul Gani, Sindu Shirmal, Shopian; Abdul Rashid Naikoo son of Ghulam Hassan Naikoo, Laroo, Kulgam; Ghulam Muhammad Khan alias Khan Sopori son of Ghulam Mohi-ud-Din of Shalpora, Sopur; Zafar Khurshid Mirza son of Muhammad Shafi of Khabbllan Behrote, Thanamandi, Rajouri; Bashir Ahmad Indrabi son of Muhammad Amin of Awantipora, Pulwama; Tariq Ahmad Shah son of Muhammad Amin of Baba Mohalla, Shopian; Showkat Ahmad Hakeem son of Ghulam Muhammad of Paribal, Hajan, Bandipora; Rashid Abdullah Bhat son of Muhammad Abdullah of Yaripora, Kulgam; Ghulam Rasool Dar son of Abdul Rehman of Sanatnagar; Ghulam Ahmad Dar  son of Abdul Samad alias Lala Dar of Suchipora, Kreeri; Nissar Hussain Rather son of Ali Muhammad of Munawar Abad, Khanyar, Srinagar; Ashiq Hussain Sofi son of Noor Muhammad of Gousia Colony, Khanyar.

DISCRIMINATION AGAINST KASHMIRIS 
KASHMIRI STUDENT BEATEN IN BABA GHULAM SHAH UNIVERSITY

Jan 2: Hundreds of Kashmiri students studying in Baba Ghulam Shah Badshah University have demanded stern action against the teachers allegedly responsible for thrashing a Kashmiri student in full public view on Jan 1.

 The protesting students have threatened to quit the university if the accused are not punished. The trouble started in the campus after two MBA students thrashed each other over a minor issue.

 Giving details, sources said that one of the student belonged to Valley while another to Jammu division. On hearing this, they said, the three teachers of MCA department allegedly thrashed the Kashmiri student till he fell unconscious.

 Soon after the news spread in the campus, hundreds of students belonging to valley came out from their respective departments and started protesting and raising anti-administration slogans.  The protest continued on the second consecutive day. The protesting students while talking to media alleged that they were being harassed by the teachers on regional basis. They said even the teachers have “abused all the Kashmiri students with the word terrorists.”

 “The teachers threatened us that we won’t be given internal assignment marks if we didn’t stop the protests”, the students said. The students also alleged that last night, a police party entered their hostel and threatened them of dire consequences if they continued protests.

 
Feeling insecure, the students said they have established contacts with their families and are considering of quitting the campus if threatening continued.

 When contacted the Public Relation Officer of the university, Ashfaq Ahmed Zari said that a probing committee has been constituted to investigate the matter and to find out the facts of the trouble adding that such minor issues are part of big institutions.  However, PRO didn’t divulge the details of the incident.

FOR VISITING AJK AT THE AGE OF 10, 55-YEAR-OLD PUT ON DEPORTATION LIST

Jan 4: In October 2008, Abdul Wahid Bhat, a resident of Khanyar in old city, was relaxing in his home when policemen conveyed to him that he is on deportation list. He was asked to leave state in 15 days.

 “I was shocked at first,” Wahid says. “My family is here, my children are here, relatives here and still I am told to leave Jammu and Kashmir, my birth place in 15 days. At this age where will I go? ” He asks. 

 In 1965, Abdul Wahid Bhat, then ten years old, along with his aunt went to AJK on a valid document. He said his aunt had children in AJK who had left Kashmir in 1947. He stayed there for three months. And soon, on September 5, 1965 India-Pakistan war broke out and continued till September 17, 1965. During the war he had reached Wagah border to cross to India but he was pushed back. He stayed back in other Kashmir. His aunt died there. Later, he said, his father and mother traveled to AJK and brought him back here after he obtaining Pakistani passport for traveling to Kashmir.

 Back home, he surrendered Pakistani passport before the Indian authorities and started living as a bonafide citizen of Jammu and Kashmir. But in 1980, police registered an FIR under Foreigners Act against him in the police station Khanyar. Subsequently, in 1983 a challan was presented before the Court. He pleaded in the Court that he didn’t acquire Pakistani passport voluntarily. He faced the trial and after eight years, the Court acquitted him.

 
Wahid says for past 29 years he has run his family business and has not violated any condition of citizenship of being permanent resident of the state. He is also enrolled by the Election Commission of India as permanent resident of Jammu and Kashmir.  

 
But still in October 2008, he was shocked when secretary Home Department Government of India through CID informed him to leave India and the Jammu and Kashmir state. “I went to Home Department but they didn’t handover the deportation order to me,” he says.

 Forced by the circumstances he went to the High Court challenging the order of the Home Department through his counsel. The Court has issued the orders to the state not to disturb the present status of Wahid. “Why I should be deported. I have my roots here and the Court has already acquitted me,” he says.
ON JANUARY 6, 1993: PARAMILITARY BSF TROOPERS GUNNED DOWN 55 INNOCENTS

SOPORE MASSACRE

It has been 15 years since that fateful day in 1993, but the wounds of one of the worst massacres in Kashmir’s already bloody history are still afresh.

On January 6, 1993, 55 innocents were killed by the paramilitary BSF troopers, in cold blood, in this north Kashmir town more famous for red apples than red streets. This is one of the few massacres that have been mentioned in TIME magazine. The news report appeared on Jan 18, 1993 in TIME magazine under the headline, Blood tide rising: Indian forces carry out one of the worst massacres in Kashmir’s history.

The magazine described the massacre as: “Perhaps there is a special corner in hell reserved for troopers who fire their weapons indiscriminately into a crowd of unarmed civilians. That, at least, must have been the hope of every resident who defied an army-enforced curfew in the Kashmiri town of Sopore to protest a massacre that left 55 people dead and scores injured.”

“It was India’s latest blow in a three-year campaign to crush the predominantly Muslim state’s bid for independence. In retaliation for the killing of one soldier, paramilitary forces rampaged through Sopore’s market setting buildings ablaze and shooting bystanders. The Indian government pronounced the event unfortunate and claimed that an ammunition dump had been hit by gunfire, setting off fires that killed most of the victims,” the TIME magazine reported.

It was the chilly winter morning of January 6, 1993 when militants attacked the BSF troopers at Baba Yousuf Lane near the Sopore town’s main street, killing a trooper. The militants also took away a rifle of the slain trooper. After the attack and suffering casualties, the troopers cordoned off the whole area restricting the movement of public. Within moments, they opened indiscriminate fire on unarmed civilians and set on fire markets, mainly Iqbal Market, and Women’s Degree College.

The local residents regard the incident as one of the worst massacres in the history of Kashmir. “I cannot forget that horrendous incident till I am alive; the troops were on rampage; I lost two relatives in the incident,” said Ali Muhammad, an eyewitness and survivor of the carnage. “I wonder can doomsday be worse,” he added.

The mayhem continued for more than two hours with people—helpless and hopeless—watching the devastation from a distance. None from the civil administration or Fire Service Department came to the rescue of the hapless people. Only the valor and heroism of the local populace made its appearance, helping each other. In one hour, the locals recovered the bodies of more than 50 civilians and miraculously rescued many more.

“Some fifteen civilians who tired to rescue their brethren were also shot dead by the troopers”, said Abdul Majid, a survivor.

Ghulam Nabi Bhat of New Light Hotel shouldered 11 bodies and before he could carry the 12th, he too was shot dead. In the reconstructed Iqbal Market it is hard to find the traces of the carnage the troopers carried out on January 6, 1993, killing at least 55 persons, most of them roasted alive in shops, buses, and houses. The troopers set about 100 houses and 300 shops on fire after dousing them with gunpowder, the local residents recall. For three days people rummaged the debris for bodies. The insurance companies refused to give any compensation to the victims.

GAWKADAL MASSACRE: FRESH MEMORIES AND FORGOTTEN KILLERS

Jan 20: Fifty two unarmed civilians were massacred by the Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) troopers on 21 January, 1990 at Gawkadal. The memories of the first of a series of bloodiest massacres by Indian troopers across the Valley carried out to quell the political struggle are fresh in the minds of the survivors and the families of the victims. And the spot where the people were mowed down like flies is marked by a granite memorial which has a marble stone inscribed with the names of the martyrs and a tap from which passersby drink water. The memorial is hidden from the public gaze for most of the times by a row of auto rickshaws. The accused killers, as a norm, were exonerated a long time back. 

 Not knowing how to respond to the mass uprising, New Delhi deputed governor Jagmohan to Kashmir. He took the charge on January 19 and on the same night the troopers searched homes in the Guru Bazaar area during crackdown operations, and randomly arrested 56 civilians, beat up and abused people.

 
On January 20, the families including a large number of women took to streets demanding the release of their kin who had been pulled out of their beds. They laid siege on the divisional commissioner's office for the whole day. Eventually, by the evening 50 of those arrested were set free as nothing was found against them.

Next day, a huge procession was taken out from Mehjoor Nagar and thousands of people from civil lines areas joined it. The protesters were marching toward Chota Bazar where the troopers had molested some women a day before. But when it reached Gawkadal the CRPF troopers fired at the unarmed peaceful protesters killing 52 of them and injuring scores of others.

 Prominent journalist and columnist Zahir-ud-din witnessed the massacre. He says, “I was in the middle of crowd, when they started firing. First they fired a shot in air and then at people. I just ran.” “Next day we buried twelve bodies in our martyr’s graveyard at Magarmal Bagh without knowing the identities of the dead. I think some of them were never identified,” Zahir-ud-din said.

 
 A Shopkeeper at Gawkadal wishing anonymity said, “The bodies were scattered on the road. The Imam Sahib of our mosque mustered up courage and walked among the bodies, trying to see if someone was breathing. How can we forget that day?” But for Abdul Rouf Wani’s courageous act the death toll would have been much higher than 52. Rouf stood in front of the barrel of a machine gun from which a CRPF trooper was firing at the procession. Rouf was 20 years old and the results of his matriculation exam were declared three months later.

 His elder sister, Zulehuma, said, “Who would rejoice at the exam results of a dead brother. When he was martyred my younger brother said Rouf was not made for this world. He was always different from all of us.” “When he was young he once told me that he wanted to die a martyr’s death. Every breath he took was in the way of the Allah,” she said. Rouf had spent the night before the massacre in a mosque reciting Quran, Zulehuma said, adding, “He had returned home two days before from Gulmarg, where he had spent a month along with many other preachers of Tabligh movement, preaching Islam.”
 Zulehuma believes that her brother’s sacrifices would not go waste. “Today we are in the same situation as we were in the 1990.People have sold the blood of those who offered sacrifices which will not go waste,” she said.

 Zulehuma has only one question for the Chief Minister, Omar Abdullah, “Has he ever asked himself where thousands of people of his age in Kashmir are? They have been killed.”

 The massacre changed the life of Showkat Ahmed Khan. He built the memorial at the Gowkadal crossing. He joined the JKLF which spearheaded the struggle at that time. On 12 March 2002 he met the same fate as those killed at Gawkadal. After his arrest by the dreaded Special Task Force, his body was found from Shalteng. His father-in-law, Nazir Ahmad says that Showkat’s face “had nearly split into two with bullets.”

 Showkat left behind a small baby girl who was barely three months old at that time. His wife has remarried since, but his daughter lives with his Showkat’s family. Nazir Ahmed says that she calls Showkat’s brother as his father. And Showkat’s neighbors remember him as the “man who made the memorial.”

RR TROOPS ON BEATING SPREE IN LOLAB
‘LOCALS DEMAND END TO ‘REIGN OF TERROR’

Jan 12: People in North Kashmir’s Lolab area staged a protest demonstration accusing the RR troopers of harassment. They staged a sit-in at Lalpora and blocked Kupwara-Diver road demanding an end to the harassment.

Locals alleged that the troopers of 18 RR posted at Lalpora camp enter their homes and beat the inmates. They said that continuing with the beating spree, the troopers previous night barged into Dar-ul-Uloom Al-Madina, Lalpora and asked the students to come out. The soldiers abused and threatened them on different pretexts.
The students alleged that troopers caught hold of Abdul Rahim Wani working as a cook in the Darul Uloom and beat him up. Seeing this, two students-Idrees Ahmad Rather and Amir Ahmad Mir fell unconscious.
“The troopers entered into the premises and scattered the belongings,” said the caretaker (Mohtamam) of the Darul Uloom.

Thereafter the troopers barges into the house of a local Reyaz Ahmad Teli and started breaking the goods in the house and beating the inmates. It was only after the locals raised alarm that the troopers left the house. Locals allege that they are being subjected to unprovoked harassment by the troopers from the last five days.
“They enter our house on different pretexts and harass us,” said a local on the condition of anonymity.

When contacted, SP Kupwara, Utam Chand refuted the allegations.” Only a search operation was conducted by troopers and people of Lalpora made a representation that police party should accompany the RR in future,” he said.

POLICE DETAINS 78-YR-HAJJ PILGRIM 2 SONS, TEENAGE DAUGHTER ALSO BEHIND BARS
MILITANCY RELATED COMPLAINTS AGAINST THEM: SP
Jan 12: A day after he returned from Hajj pilgrimage, a 78-year old Haji along with his two sons and a teenage daughter were arrested by police and detained in Police Station, Bandipora Police says there are militancy related complaints against them.Muhammad Shaban Dar, 78 son of Abdul Ahad Dar of Aythmullha, Bandipora returned home on January 5 after performing Hajj. The following day, a team of policemen visited his home and took him into custody alongwith his two sons and a 19-year-old daughter. They have been detained in Police Station, Bandipora.

Dar’s family members alleged that in the morning of January 6, 57 RR personnel entered their house and sought the photographs of the members.” There demand was out rightly rejected by Haji sahib (Muhammad Shaban Dar), who told them that he cannot hand them the pictures of his family members”, they said.

“The day passed off normally. However, in the evening when Dar sahib returned from the mosque after offering evening (Magrib) prayers, a police team from Cargo Srinagar raided our residence and arrested him, his two sons Muhammad Shafi, Muhammad Muzaffar and 19 year old daughter Ruqayia Shaban for unknown reasons”, they said.

Dar’s family members alleged that the arrest is linked to his denial to provide photographs to the 57 RR personnel. However, Colonel Waderra of 57 RR denied having any role in Dar’s arrest.Stating that army has nothing to do with the photographs of Dar and his family members,” Col Waderra said, “We know Dar very well. He was having some connections with militants but we have nothing to do with his arrest”.

Police sources told media that Dar and his family members were picked up by police team from Srinagar in currency and militancy related cases.

“I arrived back on January 5 and before my arrest, the 57 RR personnel entered my house and demanded photographs of my family. I rejected their demand keeping in view the Shariat. After the Magrib prayers, policemen (from Srinagar) arrested me, my two sons and a daughter for unknown reasons,” Muhammad Subhan Dar told media in police lock-up.

He said, “I took extra few thousands rupees with me to Saudi Arabia to purchase some golden ornaments for my daughter. However, the gold rate was very high there, so I decided against purchasing the ornaments. I did not change the currency before leaving the holy place”

“I had left for Makkah on November 19, 2008 under Cover No: 4211/6 and returned with 2500 Riyal and 20,000 Indian currency cash.The cops seized the Saudi and Indian currency besides my three Nokia Mobile phones”, he said.

Dar’s daughter, Ruqaya told media, “We are all innocent but nobody is responding to us. We don't know why we have been kept in the Police station,” said Ruqaya detained in Police station Bandipora.

Denying any currency related charges on Dar and his arrested family members, S P Bandipora Sheikh Junaid said, “There are militancy related complaints against them”.

“A police team from Srinagar is investigating the matter,” SP said, adding, “Dar and his family members have been detained in Police station Bandipora.”
COPS GO ON BEATING SPREE IN SARAF-KADAL
GOVT ORDERS PROBE, CRPF COY SHIFTED
Jan 16: The paramilitary CRPF personnel went berserk at Saraf-Kadal in downtown Srinagar during an anti-Israeli protest and smashed the window panes of many houses and shops besides beating scores of people. The government has ordered probe and shifted the CRPF Company from the area.

Like other parts of Valley, youth of Saraf-Kadal staged anti-Israeli demonstrations. The protestors clashed with police and CRPF personnel, who were deployed in strength in the area. During the clashes, the CRPF personnel went berserk and beat up dozens of youth and smashed the window panes of houses, shops and parked vehicles.

A resident of Saraf Kadal Muhammad Maqbool alleged that the cops damaged the properties and beat up several persons. “It was horrible to see that the CRPF men beating people and smashing the window panes of the houses and parked vehicles,” he said.

Another resident alleged the para-military personnel barged into the residential houses and beat the inmates. “Before leaving the houses, they also damaged the window and glasspanes,” he said.

Later, people of the area staged a demonstration and demanded that action should be taken against the para-military personnel. They also demanded that the CRPF Company should be shifted from the area.

Meanwhile, government has ordered inquiry into the incident. An official spokesman said that SSP, Srinagar will be the Enquiry Officer, who has been asked to locate the erring officials of the CRPF Company and submit his report within three days. He said the CRPF Company involved in the incident has been moved out of the downtown area.    

“The Director General of Police, Kuldeep Khoda has spoken to IG, CRPF and conveyed to him that action should be taken against the erring officials. He told him that while law and order has to be maintained at all costs, the common man should not suffer,” the spokesman said.         
TROOPERS THRASH 3 CIVILIANS, HARASS POLICEMEN
SSP ORDERS PROBE
Jan 16: Police registered cases against the troopers of army’s  8/GR posted in Karnah allegedly for thrashing a Sumo driver and his two passengers, then barging into a police post in Teetwal and harassing the officials on duty.

 Police sources told media that a Sumo bearing registration No JK09/4502 driven by Safeer Ahmad War of Batpora was on way to Tangdhar when it was stopped by the army personnel posted at Chamkot check post. Sources said the troopers ordered the driver and the passengers to come out. “They started thrashing War and his two passengers without any reason,” they alleged. 

After beating the trio, the troopers ordered them to leave the spot. “The victims straightaway went to the police post, Teetwal, and were only narrating their tale when a captain of the army posted at the check post, SS Singhni, along with a group of soldiers entered the post, dragged the victims out in front of the police officials and started beating them again. They even threatened the police officials present of dire consequences while leaving the spot,” sources said.

 The senior superintendent of police, Kupwara, Uttam Chand, was informed about the incident. The SSP sent an investigation team headed by DSP Shabir Ahmad and ordered an inquiry into the incident. Police sources said the cases have been registered under the FIR NOs 2/2009 and 3/2009.

CRPF ‘DESECRATION’ TRIGGERS PROTEST
CASE REGISTERED
Jan 18: Police resorted to baton charge and tear gas shelling against protestors in the Eidgah area of downtown following alleged desecration of the Aali Masjid by the CRPF troopers. Police have registered case against the accused. Trouble started after the locals reportedly caught some CRPF personnel gambling in the courtyard of the historic Masjid.

“We caught the CRPF men red-handed playing cards in the Masjid premises. When we tried to nab the CRPF personnel they ran away,” the protestors said.

“We made an announcement over the loudspeaker and asked people to come out to protest against the incident,” they added. The protestors started stone pelting at the troopers who retaliated with the baton charge and firing several tear gas canisters. Raising slogans against the CRPF and demanding the removal of their camp from the area, they blocked the traffic for several hours.

“The camp should be removed from here. Until this camp is here such incidents would continue to take place,” they said, alleging the security personnel posted there were indulging in eve-teasing and harassing the residents.

“When they (CRPF men) get drunk they create nuisance in the area and don’t even allow free movement after dusk,” they said, adding, “CRPF personnel frequently beat up the youth. There has been an increase in the incidents in the recent past,” the locals alleged.

The police, who had come to control the situation, have registered a case against the accused CRPF men. However, the police said the “miscreants were unidentified. “We have registered an FIR No. 7/2009. We are investigating the case and can’t say at this time if the CRPF men are involved in this,” SHO, Safa Kadal, told media.

Jan 19: Hundreds of people staged demonstrations for the second consecutive day against the desecration of the historic Aali Masjid in the Eidgah area of the city allegedly by the CRPF troopers. The SP North, Abdul Waheed Shah, said an FIR had been registered and enquiry started.
Jan 20: Hundreds of people staged protest demonstration for the third consecutive day against the desecration of historic Aali Masjid by the CRPF personnel in the old city area of Eidgah.

“We will not tolerate the desecration of our religious places. Our protests will continue till the CRPF picket is not removed from the area,” Shabir Ahmad, a protester said.
ANTI-ARMY PROTESTS IN BARAMULLA
Jan 19: People in Sangribala village in Baramulla district staged anti-army demonstrations to protest against the harassment meted out to a family by the troopers. Reports said that army personnel barged into the house of one Mohammad Sharif Khan son of Meer Khan at Sangribala village on Jan 18, after cordoning off the entire hamlet. “The army personnel conducted searches in the house and ransacked the household goods,” the locals alleged.

“The army personnel accused Amir Hussain son of the house owner of hiding the weapons and thrashed him mercilessly. The inmates pleaded before the army personnel but of no avail,” they said.

The locals alleged that after finding nothing incriminating army personnel placed a grenade outside their house and claimed that the grenade was recovered from the house. “The soldiers detonated the grenade by firing bullet towards it. The grenade exploded with a powerful bang,” media quoted Amir Hussain as saying.

People of the entire village came out on roads after hearing the explosion. Seeing people in large numbers moving towards them, the army personnel left the spot.

When people came to know about the incident, they staged massive anti-army demonstrations and raised pro-freedom and anti-India slogans. They demanded action against the army personnel for harassing the family.

The locals alleged that the army personnel snatched the identity cards of Khan’s family members before fleeing from the spot. The situation in the village remained tense and all shops and business establishments remained closed as a mark of protest.

When contacted defence spokesman said he has got no information about the incident. 

GOVT SANCTIONS EX-GRATIA RELIEF TO MILITANCY-RELATED VICTIMS
Jan 18: In the first sign to reach out to militancy-affected people of Jammu and Kashmir, the state Government has sanctioned over Rs 50 lakh in over 100 cases of militancy-affected victims in Srinagar, Baramulla and Kulgam districts of the valley. The deputy commissioner, Srinagar, Me’raj Ahmad Kakroo, chaired a meeting of the district level Screening cum Coordination Committee in which 90 cases of victims of militancy-related activities came up for discussions, an official spokesman said.

 He said as many as 61 cases were cleared and an ex-gratia relief of Rs 25.44 lakh was sanctioned. It includes ex-gratia in favour of the next of the kin of 14 people killed in violence, one missing case, 28 injured people and 15 property damage cases, the spokesman said.23 of 24 cases of the next of the kins of missing people, who were seeking government jobs under SRO-43, were cleared for compassionate appointment.

 In Baramulla district, a similar meeting was chaired by Deputy Commissioner, Baseer Ahmad Khan. An ex-gratia relief of Rs 18.74 lakh was sanctioned in favour of 30 militancy-related cases in the district, the spokesman said. These include five cases of death, three missing cases and 22 property damaged cases. The district level screening committee also recommended compassionate appointment under SRO-43 for the next kin of 11militancy-hit victims, the spokesman said.

 In Kulgam, Deputy Commisioner Latief-uz Zaman Deva sanctioned Rs 6.22 lakh as ex-gratia relief in nearly 10 cases of militancy-affected victims at the District Level Screening Committee meeting, the spokesman said.
 This is the first meeting of the district level screening committee since the National Conference-Congress coalition Government led by Chief Minister Omar Abdullah came to power earlier this year.

458 HR CASES AGAINST TROOPS UNDER JUDICIAL SCRUTINY
HC ASKS DEFENCE MINISTRY TO SUBMIT STATUS REPORT IN 2 WEEKS
Jan 19: At least 458 cases of human rights violations, particularly killings, by troops in Kashmir have come under judicial scrutiny after State High Court directed Union Defence Ministry asking it to explain within two weeks the status of these cases pending for sanction of prosecution.Justice Hakim Imtiyaz directed Joint Secretary, Ministry of Defence to inform the court within two weeks about the present status of cases awaiting sanction against armed forces involved in killings and other human rights offences in Kashmir.Justice Imtiyaz also brought Director General of Police Crime and Railways under the compass of order asking him to furnish information from his side to the court within a fortnight.The two have been asked to come out with causes of delay in disposal of these cases.The court asked the duo to propose a timeline for finalizing these cases.They were also directed to personally look into the matter and submit their view regarding the grant of prosecution.The case is expected to be posted immediately after vacations.

In a petition Ghulam Nabi Magrey versus Union of India, the State government told the court that from 1990 to 2007 at least 458 cases had been sent to New Delhi for allowing prosecution against troopers indicted by police in different incidents of killings and other human rights violations.In October 2008, Principal Secretary Home told the court that sanction had been received for prosecution of 270 cases while Union of India rejected the sanction of prosecution of four troops. Another 122 cases are pending with DGP Crime for clarification.

                 On the significance of the order, Parvez Imroz, the counsel for the petitioner said: “It will open a Pandora’s box as sanction is now under judicial scrutiny.”Contradicting government claims he said no accused trooper had been tried as yet.”They continue to be shielded by the draconian Armed Forces Special Powers Act,” he said.

In a number of cases the State government had commenced court proceedings against the accused trooper but had to eat a humble pie after the forces obtained stay from the Supreme Court of India, he said.

Imroz said the number recommended for sanction is a tip of an iceberg.“Only five per cent of victims file FIRs. Hardly 10 per cent are investigated by local police and a minuscule fraction is recommended for prosecution that too after a protracted legal battle,” the lawyer said.

The petitioner’s 17-year-old son Javed was picked up by army men in the night of May 31, 2003 from his Soiteng residence in the city outskirts.The boy was killed in cold blood following which an administrative inquiry was ordered which held trooper responsible for the killing of the unarmed student. 

PARENTS DEMAND WHEREABOUTS OF SON DISAPPEARED IN DEHRADUN
Jan 11: The parents of Muhammad Irfan Shah, a BBA student who went missing from Dehradun, Sunday said despite approaching State police, his whereabouts were unknown. Shah, a Kashmiri student studying at Dehradun went missing on December 20 under mysterious circumstances. Shah son of Ghulam Muhammad Shah of Nadihal village of Rafiabad is enrolled at Institute of Paramedical and Allied Sciences Dehradun.

"I approached IGP Kashmir B Srinivas who told me that he sent a written communication to S P Dehradun about the incident. I also met some political leaders and sought their help but to no avail," Imran's father, Ghulam Muhammad Shah said.

Imran's father alleged that the management of the Institute at Dehradun was harassing his son for the fees and had pressurized him to deposit Rs 15,000 with the institution without any delay.

"I requested the Accountant that I will deposit the fees of my son by January 10 as my salary was not released yet," he said.

An FIR 260/2008 was registered with Police Station Jallan Walla in Dehradun regarding the disappearance of the Kashmiri student. Police has not reached to any conclusion yet. "The case stands registered and police is investigating the matter," SHO S K Jaswal said.
WOMAN DEMANDS REMAINS OF HUSBAND
Jan 17: Acting on the orders of district magistrate Rajouri to exhume the graves of those who had allegedly been killed in fake encounter by [Indian] security forces, a police team exhumed a grave in Pir Badesar near LoC in this remote district of Rajouri and found remains of a man. When Bego Begum saw the remains she trembled and cried, "He is Yousuf, my husband".

Mohammad Yousuf (then 45) son of Raj Mohammad and two others - Abdul Aziz son of Sher Mohammad, Abdul Aziz (then 22) son of Mohammad Hussain - of Kotdhara village were picked up by the soldiers of 18 Dogra Regiment stationed at Keeri on October 9, 1997 from their homes.

The families allege that they were killed in a fake gunfight and buried in two pits near the LoC. In March 2007 the family members wrote to the deputy commissioner who ordered detailed investigations into the matter. After three months of police investigation, on June 20, 2007 a police team exhumed one of the graves and recovered remains of Yousuf, which were identified by his wife Begum and later confirmed by DNA testing.

Sources told media that on June 20, 2007, District Magistrate Rajouri had ordered the exhumation of three unidentified bodies buried in Pir Badesar area of Rajouri near Kancha Post. While acting on the order, police on the same day exhumed one grave, but left two other graves untouched.

The order was issued by the DM Rajouri following complaints by some residents of village Kotedhara that army had picked up their three relatives from their respective homes in 1997 and had allegedly killed them in a fake encounter and buried the bodies near LOC in Pir Badesar.The family members alleged that the trio was working as informers for the 18 Dogra Regiment.

Mohammad Farooq, the brother of one of the missing person Abdul Aziz, alleged that when the 18 Dogra Regiment unit was shifted in October 1997, the CO got the three men murdered in a fake gunfight near LoC in Peer Badesar area.

"The CO feared that if the three men remain alive they may expose him, so he got them killed," Farooq said.

A visibly distressed Begum said that the police have not handed over remains of her husband for the last rites.

"Despite DNA confirmation, the police have not handed over the remains of my husband for last rites," says Bago Begum, adding that the police want to hush up the case.

She has now pinned hopes on new state chief minister and has appealed him to take action against those who had "deliberately hushed up the case by delaying tactic"."I appeal to new chief minister if he is sincere he should investigate the matter why other graves on LOC have not been opened by police despite DM's order," she added.

When contacted, present DM Rajouri Mohammad Rafiq Sheikh refused to comment. 

TRAGIC FAMILY
PULWAMA WIDOW’S PURSUIT FOR JUSTICE AFTER ONE SON FELL TO BULLETS, ANOTHER DIED IN MISHAP
Jan 22: Miseries of Habbla, a woman from Pulwama, started with the death of her husband due to fatal illness. But the unexpected killing of her son Ghulam Mohiudin Shah precipitated her worries, complicating her life beyond a mention. He was killed by unidentified gunmen in January 2004 and she has not been given the ex-gratia till now. Deputy Commissioner says he has no information and will look into the matter.

Shah, according to Habbla, was picked up by unidentified gunmen from his house at Pulwama town in January 2004 and after months his body was recovered from Pulwama suburbs. The death has knelt a terrible blow to this woman who was already been jolted by the death of her husband.

 “The death of my son inflicted an unhealed injury upon me making my life not only tasteless but also meaningless,” she says with tears rolling down her cheeks. After the killing of her son, another son met with an accident and lost his life. 

“The merciless death wrecked our family and those who survive are victims of the circumstances,” the octogenarian added.

When, Mohammad Amin Shah, the second son of the widow was killed in an accident, her third son Abdul Khaliq Shah was impacted psychologically, making him unfit for any work, as he could not weather the storm that ravaged the family.

She says,” Everyone knows that death ravaged my family leaving no bread earner behind. I earn a livelihood by shaping the mud-oven in the kitchens of others. How long will my aged body make me stand to earn the meager,” Habbla pleads.

Habbla has visited the revenue section of Deputy Commissioner Pulwama office many times, however returns disappointed everytime. “I am asked to come tomorrow and that ‘tomorrow’ never comes,” she said.

Deputy commissioner Pulwama Istiyaq Ashiye told media that he did not know any thing about this matter.

“Let her come to me and I will look into the matter,” he said.

LAND OCCUPATION
· DEMILITARIZATION, REMILITARIZATION

CRPF OCCUPIES HEALTH CENTRE VACATED BY ARMY IN 2007

 Jan 6: Two years back army’s 30 Rashtriya Rifles battalion vacated the New Type Primary Health Centre (NTPHC) in Qalamabad, Langate area of Handwara. The coalition government at that time called it as demilitarization. Two days back the Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) troopers occupied the same building, according to health officials.

 Medical officials wishing anonymity told media that the CRPF occupied the building two days back to establish a base camp there. The army had vacated the building in November 2007. A group of officials said, adding, after 14 years of occupation by soldiers, the health centre was vacated after the Defence Minister of India announced that troops would pull out from government buildings, schools, and hospitals before November 30, 2007. The sudden reoccupation of the building has caused hardships to patients, they said.

 “Army is harassing the lower staff and warned our employees of dire consequences. They broke down a door of a room and told us that CRPF is moving into the building,” said Dr. Masrat, Block Medical Officer Langate, adding, “The soldiers ordered us to report to the Commanding Officer. I went to meet him yesterday, but he was not there.”

 
The building is being renovated, as the 14 years of army’s occupation had left it damaged. For the time being the health department was running a makeshift Out Patient Department from the yet-to-be completed building. Only in June it was renovated to the extent that an OPD can function in it.

 
“The health centre caters to the population of 40000 people,” he said. 

 
The Superintendent of Police Handwara Muhammed Rafiq Vakil, however, told media that CRPF troopers are “occupying the unattended old building of health department for only a week.”

 “These arrangements have been made on temporary basis for replacing a battalion of BSF,” he said.

 
The Member of Legislative Assembly from Langate, Engineer Rashid said that he has discussed the issued with the district administration. “They have assured me that it will be vacated by evening,” he added.

 
The Brigadier 7 Sector Rashtriya Rifles, Indu Naryanan, said that they don’t intend to occupy the building. “We have nothing to do with it, we have already vacated it,” he said.

· CRPF CONTINUES TO OCCUPY GOVT DEPTT BUILDING
HELPLESS EMPLOYEES FORCED TO WORK IN TIN SHEDS
Jan 12: The employees of the Irrigation and Flood Control Department in Baramulla district have been forced to work in tin sheds as the department buildings have been occupied by the CRPF personnel since the assembly elections began in November 2008.The elections are over, but the buildings located at Flood Colony, Khwaja Bagh still remain occupied.

"The buildings were severely damaged in the 2005 earthquake earlier. Now three years after working in dangerous conditions their renovation was started much to the relief of the employees. But the relief proved short lived when the CRPF personnel forcibly occupied the buildings," said an employee pleading anonymity.

The paramilitary men, according to the employees, broke open the locks of the department saying that they have the permission of the district authorities forcing them to work in tin sheds in the premises of the building.

An official of the department while blaming the district authorities said that the CRPF men have changed the entire premises into a camp besides setting up latrines in the vicinity leading to pollution in the area.

"Elections are over. Why aren't they leaving? The district administration should take steps to free the building of military presence as it is badly affecting our work. We have no other accommodation where we can perform our duties," the official said, adding that the CRPF have occupied all the twenty rooms of the buildings which house both the Mechanical (flood) and Irrigation sections.

Winter being the proper season for the irrigation works, the occupation of the department by the men in uniform is going to affect the common man like farmers in the future. The Assistant Executive Engineer, Irrigation and Flood Control, Baramulla division said that the CRPF presence apart from the department has been a cause of worry for the people living in 200 odd quarters of the Flood Colony.

"The presence of CRPF has certainly affected the working of the department. Three to four employees work in extremely small rooms. We have asked the district authorities to take some serious steps in this regard as the department is badly suffering," he said.

· DEMILITARIZATION OF 350 GOVT BUILDINGS LIKELY

Jan 18: The government has set up a committee that would monitor evacuation of army and paramilitary troopers from government buildings and private properties, and also make arrangements for providing them alternative accommodation. The Committee is considering relocating army, CRPF, BSF, ITBP and police from about 350 government buildings-- schools, hospitals, offices--- currently occupied by the armed forces in different parts of the Valley.

 Headed by the principal secretary Home, Khursheed Ahmad Ganai, the committee comprises director general of police, Kuldeep Khuda, divisional commissioners and inspectors general of police of Kashmir and Jammu regions, inspectors general of BSF, ITBP and CRPF, and representatives of Army’s Corps.

 The Committee, which would meet every month, would continuously monitor the progress of vacation of government buildings and take decisions on construction of alternate accommodation---pre-fab or permanent structures--- depending on need and feasibility.  “Evacuation of the health and educational institution buildings shall be taken up on priority followed by other buildings,” a source in administration said.
· 200 KANAL LAND UNDER TROOPS OCCUPATION SINCE 1990
50 FAMILIES MIGRATED TO AJK, 30 LIVING UNDER AVALANCHE THREAT
Jan 19: More than 200 kanal of proprietary land at Lashdut in this frontier district, comprising maize, pulse and potato fields besides apple and walnut orchards have been under the occupation of troops since 1990. As a consequence, nearly 50 families were forced to cross over to AJK in 1990 and  30 other families are living temporarily at Kanyan, Doga and Kamkadi near the line of control  under avalanche threat. 

 Before 1990, Lashdut was a peaceful village. Inhabitants of the small hamlet used to earn their livelihood through cattle rearing, growing food grains and vegetables. In January 1990, Grenadier Regiment occupied the land, and over the years army units, including 14 Raj Rifles, JAK riffles, Mahar regiment and several other units took control of the land. Presently, land is under the occupation of Rajput and 7 Para regiments.

 “We were living happily and the main source of our sustenance was land and cattle. But in 1990, when the armed rebellion broke out in the state, army started harassing us and finally occupied the land forcing the villagers to migrate. The occupation has rendered us homeless and made our survival difficult,” said head of a displaced family wishing not be named.

 The families alleged that scores of cattle had perished in the past 18 years due to landmine explosions. They said the land had been completely fenced by the troopers and their houses razed to ground.
 “Troopers have been using trees and furniture as firewood. We have not received single penny as compensation till date,” the villagers said, adding, “Since the day troops occupied our land we’ve not been allowed to visit our fields.”  

 “Only source of income for my family was my 20 kanal of land comprising walnut trees. But for past two decades, I have been deprived of my livelihood and the troops are using my land as helipad and the walnut trees have been chopped,” said a displaced farmer.

 
When contacted, the PRO Defence declined to comment on land compensation issue. “I can’t comment on this,” he said. 

 Officials at district development commissioner’s office at Kupwara told media that the file had been sent to army’s district estates office, Baramulla, for approval.

PANIC STRICKEN BORDER RESIDENTS DEMAND UNDERGROUND BUNKERS

Jan 15: The residents of North Kashmir's border district Kupwara have started to feel unsafe after the recent statement by Army chief general Deepak Kapoor. The army chief did not rule out a military option when he stated that such an action is one among the options available before the government in response to Mumbai attacks.

The residents have demanded reconstruction of underground bunkers and the underground surgical wards in hospitals People living close to LoC in Karnah, Keran and Machil sectors are apprehensive about their safety in case war breaks out between India and Pakistan.

"We are living in war zone and authorities have not taken any measures to ensure safety of our lives," they said. They added that the authorities have not constructed the underground bunkers, which they were supposed to construct after 2002. "The government had ordered the construction of bunkers in 2002 but due to unknown reasons the construction work was stopped half-way," the residents of Karnah who assembled in DC office Kupwara told media.

These residents can not forget the cross border shelling in 90s and 2000. "We fear that the ceasefire on LoC, which has been in effect since 2003, may end and India, Pakistan may resume hostilities on border," they said, adding it will bring many miseries for them. The residents demand that the authorities should gear up its machinery and start work on the underground surgical ward in SDH Karnah and other dispensaries near to LoC.

 "In case of resumption of hostilities between India and Pakistan, border people will be the worst hit. As such it becomes obligatory for authorities to keep the hospitals under emergency mode and set up underground surgical ward in hospitals to deal with any eventuality," the residents added.

One of the resident of Machil Muneer Khan who has all along traveled to Kupwara for a medical check up said that October 8, 2005 earthquake was not that devastative. But more devastation is caused during the shelling by the troopers of both India and Pakistan "October 8, 2005 earthquake was not as devastating as the shelling between Indian and Pakistani troops. We have lost many precious lives to the cross-border shelling. Many have been maimed while hundreds of structures were damaged by the firing and shelling incidents," he said, adding, "Nobody knows better the consequences of war and cross border shelling then the border residents."

Like other border residents Muneer too demanded that authorities should construct underground bunkers for them so that they can take refuge in it in case hostilities break out between India and Pakistan.

A senior official in Chief Medical Office Kupwara told media that measures should have been put in place to meet any eventualities. "We should make use of the underground surgical wards in SDH Karnah and other hospitals on LoC," he said. He added said that no emergency medical facilities are available in Keran, which faces threat of direct hit in case of Indo-Pak war.

ON RAISING DAY, RR GIFTS LIQUOR TO STUDENTS

POLICE CONFIRMS COMPLAINTS, ARMY DENIES CHARGE

Jan 11: Army has sparked off a major controversy by distributing wine bottles as ‘gift’ to the school children including girls, who had participated in the “National Anthem Singing Competition” on the Raising Day of 43 Rashtriya Rifles at Thanmandi in Poonch district.

Sources said that 43 Rashtriya Rifles organized Raising Day at Thanamandi in border district of Rajouri.The residents and children of various schools of the area were invited to participate in sports and cultural events.

They said that some of the students were engaged by the army to participate in Ring Competition Game in which a student had to aim on ‘wine bottle’ from the ring. “The successful students, who managed to hit the target, were handed over the same bottle as reward for their performance. Some students were given packed wine as an award for participating in the event,” they said.

Sources further said the students, who won “National Anthem singing competition” were also given wine bottles as reward by the army officers. “At total of 20 students including 11 girls were given the wine bottles,” they said.

They further claimed that even some citizens, who were invited as guests, were also given wine bottles by the army. Displaying the wine bottles to media, a student Sakina Kousar said that she got ‘this award’ from army in a packing. “When I opened the packing, I found ‘Golden Eagle’ wine bottle”, she said.

Sakina along with Rubeena Raina, Imtiyaz and Nazir have received wine bottles as award for their outstanding performance in singing national anthem of India “Jana Gana Mana”.  

Imtiyaz said that he did not open the packing on the spot. “When I opened it in the home, I found ‘Golden Eagle’ wine bottle,” he said.

Following the episode, senior residents of the area organized a meet and strongly condemned the distribution of wine bottles among the students.

Muslim United Front Chairman Shafkat Wani said that he himself has seen these wine bottles in the hands of the students. “We have kept these bottles with us in which CSD is clearly mentioned”, he said adding,” We have decided to observe complete bandh on  Jan 12 and stage protests on Friday ( Jan 16)”.

Demanding that army should take action against the erring soldiers, he urged the Chief Minister Omar Abdullah to take up the matter with army chief, General Deepak Kapoor.

When contacted, Station House Officer Police Station Thanamandi Ashiq Khan said that he has also received the complaints.

However, army spokesman for Northern Command, F M Acharya denied that wine bottles were gifted to the students during an army function. “It was an excursion-cum-awareness program in which villagers and children participated. No wine bottles were distributed among the children or villagers,” he said.

IN BRIEF

· TWO LET OGWS HELD IN PULWAMA

Jan 8: Police claimed to have arrested two Over Ground Workers (OGWs) of Lashkar-e-Toiba militant outfit from Pulwama district in South Kashmir and recovered arms and ammunition from their possession.

"On specific information, police apprehended two OGWs of the LeT from Khalloen area of Pulwama district," a police spokesman said. The arrested persons have been identified as Abdul Hanan Najar S/o Manzoor Ahmad and Shabir Ahmad Bhat S/o Khair Bhat. One hand grenade, 15 rounds of AK ammunition, a tent of foreign-make and three woolen blankets were recovered from their possession.

· KASHMIRI BOY BEATEN UP FOR RAISING ANTI-INDIAN SLOGANS AT ATTARI

Jan 14: A teenaged boy from Jammu and Kashmir was allegedly beaten up by BSF for raising anti- India and pro- Pakistan slogans during the flag-lowering ceremony at the international Attari check post.

A senior officer of the district administration said that the incident occurred when Border Security Force (BSF) personnel were busy in performing the evening drill of beating the retreat ceremony. The boy stood up and shouted anti- Indian slogans amidst the presence of five thousand visitors on the Indian side of the international border, the officer said.

A BSF officer ordered the jawans to overpower the boy, who also raised pro- Pakistan slogans. When the boy did not listen to the BSF to stop shouting the slogans, he was allegedly thrashed and removed from the site. The youth was later let off after a brief interrogation by BSF.

During the interrogation, it came to light that he arrived in the city from Jammu and Kashmir to take part in the National Youth Festival being held in the city.

· CRPF OFFICER BOOKED FOR BEATING PEOPLE, RANSACKING HOMES

Jan 17: Police registered a case against an assistant commander of a company of Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) whose troopers ransacked houses and beat-up civilians at Safa Kadal during anti-Israel protests even as several persons were injured in clashes between police and protesters on Jan 16 (Friday).Sources said police registered a case against the assistant commander Rajinder Singh on the directions of the Inspector General of Police, Kashmir, Dr B Srinivas.

 Protesters continued with the protests against the CRPF in many parts of the old city including Safa-Kadal, Bohri Kadal, Fateh Kadal and other adjoining areas. The shops and businesses in these areas remained closed while youth took to streets and demonstrated against CRPF at several places. Several protesters and a policeman were injured as police tried to quell the protests by baton charging the youth and firing repeated tear smoke shells. The protesters retaliated by pelting stones on them.

 “The troopers had damaged our property without any provocation. We had taken out rally against Israel to sympathize with Palestinians,” the protesters said. “They broke the window panes of our houses and beat us up,” they said.

· POLICE TO GET REINS, HINTS CM

On January 21, the chief minister, Omar Abdullah, hinted at the possibility of handing over the internal security of the state to Jammu and Kashmir Police.

 “We want Jammu and Kashmir Police to play a bigger role in future,” Omar told media. He said that government was formulating a strategy to give a frontal role to state’s police force. “We want paramilitary troopers to assist the police force rather than police assisting them and that is the direction we’ve to head towards,” the chief minister said.

 He said that government was very much aware of the problems being faced by the common people and wanted to mitigate their sufferings. “People came out to cast their votes for a change. By taking such steps we want to send a message to the masses that their problems are being looked into. We want people to feel the difference on the ground,” Omar said.   

 The chief minister has already passed the directions to the police to be at the forefront at public places in Srinagar and police has already taken over the charge. The move has evoked a positive response from various quarters of the society and people feel that it would help in relaxing the tense atmosphere.   

· SPECIAL POLICE TEAMS TO ARREST STONE THROWERS: SSP

Jan 30: Police has formed special teams to arrest stone throwers and initiate legal action against them, a top police official told media. Almost every Friday in the past six months there have been clashes between police and pro-independence demonstrators who are not allowed to protest in peaceful manner and who then resort to stone pelting in Nowhatta and some other areas of the old city. Police and paramilitary troopers have shot dead five stone pelting youths, and injured hundreds of others. Dozens of cops and troopers have also been injured, mostly during the June uprising.

 “We have registered FIRs against the stone throwers and formed special teams to arrest them,” Senior Superintendent of Police North, Abdul Waheed Shah told media.

 Shah said many youth who resort to stone pelting have been identified and cases ranging from damaging public property to endangering life have been registered.” We are gathering evidence against the accused and they will be arrested soon,” Shah said.

 The Senior Superintendent of Police, Srinagar, Syed Afadul Mujtaba, said law will take its own course to deal with stone throwers. “We won’t allow anybody to take law into their hands and press for stringent action against the stone throwers,” the SSP said. The SSP said the locals and shopkeepers of the old city too were “aghast over the frequent stone pelting incidents.” He said the police had even approached the senior citizens of Nowhatta to stop the youth from resorting to stone-pelting.

 “However, there is no let up. We want to maintain that stone-pelting is legally, ethically and above all religiously forbidden. We have no option but to take legal action against the accused. But people have to cooperate with us in the endeavor if they want to make the society a better place to live in,” the SSP said.

REPORTED DISAPPEARANCES

· MAN DISAPPEARS

Jan 5: The family members of Muhammad Sayeed have expressed grave concern over his ‘mysterious’ disappearance in Qazigund.

 
According to media, 32-year-old Muhammad Sayeed of Lamad Qazigund left home 10 days ago to visit Punjab in connection with his business. But since then, the whereabouts of Sayeed were not known.

· BOY MISSING

Jan 13: A youth has been reportedly missing since January 9, 2009 from Bathindi area in the outskirts of Jammu. Police said that Abid Hussain, 19, son of Mohammad Razaq resident of Golad, Tehsil Mendhar, district Poonch presently at Bathindi Jammu has been reportedly missing since January 9, 2009 from his home.

· TENGPORA MAN MISSING

Jan 15: A 22-year old man, Parvez Ahmad Sheikh son of Abdul Gani Sheikh of Tengpora Bypass Batamaloo is missing since Jan 13, when he left for work, police officials said.

 Parvez is working as a runner for a distributor of potato chips brand, Lays. His family has filed a report (FIR 13/09) in police station Batamaloo.

EXPLOSIONS

· 3 HURT IN BATMALOO EXPLOSION

Jan 13: At least three persons were injured in a grenade explosion at Batmaloo, police said.

 A police official said that unknown persons hurled a grenade towards the CRPF bunker of 157 battalion. However, the device missed the target and exploded on the road injuring three pedestrians. The injured were identified as Ghulam Nabi Sheikh son of Abul Gani of Wathoora, Mushtaq Ahmed Kaloo son of Ghulam Qadir of Malpora and Fayaz Ahmed son of Abdur Rehman of Soura.

·  MINOR KILLED IN BLAST

Jan 16: One minor boy died on the spot when an explosive device burst at Mohalla Chandyal in Sangoit area of Mendhar under the jurisdiction of Police S Gursai of district Poonch.

Reports said that some children while playing in a field spotted a ball like device and one of them started fiddling with it. It exploded in his hands resulting in his on spot death. The deceased has been identified as Tafail Ahmed, 12, son of Mohammad Iqbal resident of Mohalla Chadyal. Police has started the investigation.

· ONE KILLED, ANOTHER HURT IN BLAST

Jan 17: A civilian was killed and his brother-in-law was injured when an explosive device went off when they were boiling scrap in their house at village Jaganu in Udhampur district.


Scrap collected by the civilians from firing range was being boiled when an unexploded grenade was reported to have gone off killing Mohan Lal son of Bholu Ram R/o Jaganu on spot and injuring his brother-in-law Om Prakash son of Jagdish Raj R/o Bassan.


Police shifted the duo to local hospital where Mohan Lal was declared brought dead while Om Prakash was admitted in serious condition. Police have registered a case in this connection for investigations.

SUICIDES / FRATRICIDAL KILLINGS BY TROOPS

· CRPF JAWAN COMMITS SUICIDE

Jan 7: A jawan of Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) allegedly committed suicide by shooting himself with his service weapon in Poonch district of Jammu and Kashmir.

Official sources said that a trooper identified as Pargat Singh (number 881330349), resident of village Tikri Barnala district in Punjab, who was posted in  193 Battalion of D Coy, shot himself with his service rifle at ITI complex in Poonch town.

Police said he died on the spot while reason behind the suicide was yet to be ascertained. Inquest proceedings under section 174 Cr PC have been initiated, they said.

· CRPF TROOPER SHOOTS COLLEAGUE

Jan 10: A Paramilitary CRPF trooper was allegedly shot dead by his colleague in South Kashmir’s Islamabad district, official sources said. The argument broke out between two CRPF men, Kundan Lal and Praveen Kumar in company headquarters of 93 battalion F- Company at Achabal.

“In a fit of rage Lal pulled out his service weapon and fired upon Kumar injuring him critically,” sources said, adding that Kumar was rushed to hospital where doctors declared him brought dead.

LOVESICKNESS AND MARITAL DISCORD PUSH TROOPS TO SUICIDE, FRATRICIDE

MEASURES AFOOT TO REDUCE STRESS: ARMY

Jan 29: The failed love affairs and marital discord is taking heavy toll on the men in uniform with 34 army personnel committing suicide and fratricide killing in the strife torn State during 2008.


Army’s Northern Command spokesman, Col D K Kachari, in a statement issued, said that 34 cases of suicides and a single incident of fratricide killing took place among the army men deployed in the State in 2008. “In 2005, 44 soldiers committed suicide while 10 cases of fratricide killings were also reported,” said the spokesman.


Giving motives for such incidents, Col Kachari said, “The major cause of these deaths is martial discord, failed love affairs, organizational problems and domestic reasons”. He further said that domestic problems and their deployment in harsh terrain is becoming the causative factor of stress for them. “They have to face hostile weather conditions, maintain continuous vigil and relentless counter insurgency operations,” he said.


The psychiatrists have been stating that owing to stress and strain associated with their job in militancy infested Jammu and Kashmir; troops fail to cope up with the pressure and commit suicides and kill their colleagues. Col Kachari said that army has taken a number of measures to reduce the cases of suicide and fratricides among its men.


Despite the preventive measures taken by army, the troopers have been committing suicide and few such incidents were reported in this year so far. “A constant effort is being made towards creating a healthy and happy working environment and development of camaraderie among the men and officer,” added Col Kachari.

OFFICIAL STATEMENTS

· CUSTODIAL KILLINGS WILL NOT BE TOLERATED: CM 

‘NO SOLDIER WILL BE ALLOWED TO COMMIT CRIME IN THE NAME OF COUNTERINSURGENCY’

Jan 05: The Chief Minister, Omar Abdullah has asserted that no trooper will be allowed to commit any crimes or custodial killings in the name of countering militancy.

“No security personnel will be allowed to commit any crimes or custodial killings in the name of countering militancy.  Strict action will be taken not against the erring official but also against his superiors, if they fail to act in time,” Omar Abdullah told media shortly after taking oath as the Chief Minister of the state

· HR VIOLATIONS WON'T BE TOLERATED: CM
Jan 14: Chief Minister Omar Abdullah has called for zero tolerance on human rights violations and asked the authorities concerned to investigate any violation, if it takes place in a transparent manner and give quick punishment, if awarded.

Omar stated this while addressing the first meeting of the Unified Command to review the security situation in the state after taking over as the Chief Minister. He asked the chief secretary to sort out the issues between the civil administration and the Army in the matters of acquisition of land, rent and other related issues and hoped that the Civil and Military Liaison Conference shall be held on first priority.

On the issue of vacation of government buildings, especially health and educational institutions, by the security forces, the Chief Minister said a committee had been constituted under the chairmanship of principal secretary to government, Home, that would examine the issue and take a decision on providing alternate accommodation to the security forces. The Army assured full cooperation in the matter.

· 800 MILITANTS ACTIVE IN J&K: GOC-IN-C
Jan 15:"About 600 to 800 militants are active in Jammu and Kashmir as per the assessment of various security agencies," General Officer Commanding in Chief (GOC-in-C), Northern Command, Lt Gen P C Bhardwaj told media after conclusion of Northern Command Investiture Ceremony.

He maintained that militants and their leadership are under severe pressure due to the elimination of their top cadres. Due to this cumulative effect, 335 militants have been killed in joint operations during last year, he said.

Referring to cross-border infiltration, Gen Bhardwaj said, "Infiltration is on decline since 2004 due to multi-tier deployment of security we have taken along LoC".

To a question about militants being staged along the borderline for infiltration into J&K, he said, "We are concerned. We keep up vigil against infiltration which happens especially in winter months. Security in south of Pir Panchal has been beefed up as infiltration may take place there”. He further said every month throughout the year and for so many years; they (militants) remain prepared to find any opportunity to infiltrate.

· POLICE DECLARES 2008 MOST PEACEFUL SINCE 1990
Jan 20: The year 2008 witnessed less violence as compared to previous two years of turmoil in the strife torn State with just 626 violent incidents.

Police statistics revealed that 132 encounters took place across the state during 2008. “The border district of Kupwara witnessed 42 encounters while Baramulla followed with 30. The central Kashmir district of Budgam witnessed only one encounter during the year,” the statistics disclosed.

The police statistics further reveal that 51 grenade attacks took place across the State during the period. “25 grenade attacks took place in Srinagar while 19 attacks were reported from North Kashmir’s Baramulla district. Budgam, Islamabad, Kulgam, and Handwara witnessed no grenade explosion,” the statistics reveals. Against 51 grenade blasts in 2008, 64 such explosions were reported from across the State in 2007.

“The valley witnessed 9 mines/ IED blasts in 2008 with four of them taking place in Baramulla. In contrary, 42 mine/IED blasts and four car explosions were reported in 2007,” the police statistics reveal. The police data further states that 48 persons were attacked by gunmen in 2008. “Of these, 18 were policemen while rest were civilians”.

No fidayeen attack, according to police statistics, took place in Kashmir in 2008. “10 policemen, 10 CRPF men and 34 army personnel were killed and 124 troopers injured during the militancy related incidents in the previous year in Valley,” the police statistics reveal.

It states, “95 troopers including 60 Army men, 16 CRPF and 15 police men were killed in 2007”.

The police data reveals that 237 militants were killed in the previous year. “Of these, 66 were locals, 77 foreigners and 94 were unidentified militants. The most numbers of local militants – 17 - were killed in Pulwama while maximum number of foreign militants – 27- were killed in Baramulla. 64 unidentified militants were killed in border district of Kupwara.” The police statistics states that 347 militants were killed in encounters with troopers in 2007.

“38 civilians were killed and 135 injured in different violence related incidents in 2008 while 94 civilians lost their lives in 2007”, the statistics reveal. “461 persons were arrested in 2008 while 285 militants were arrested in 2007,” adds the police data.
· MILITANCY FELL BY 86 PC DURING POLLS: KHODA
Jan 21: Militancy-related incidents dropped by 86 per cent during the 2008 Jammu and Kashmir Assembly elections compared to the 2002 polls, State police chief Kuldeep Khoda  said.


There were 145 such incidents during the just-concluded Assembly polls against 1,000 cases in 2002, he said delivering the keynote address at a conference on national security and the role of India Inc. He said the December polls saw 95 per cent decline in civilian killings from 220 in 2002 to 12 this time and pointed out that for the first time no political party office bearer was killed in the elections compared to 48 such murders last time.


Killings of security and police personnel too fell by 96 per cent—from 148 in 2002 elections to five this time, he said. Khoda said it was for the first time that an all time high number of 1,353 candidates contested for the 87 assembly seats and a record 4,200 public meetings were held despite terrorist threats.


The police chief said the State has been facing the brunt of terrorism for over two decades and over 67,000 incidents of militant violence were reported resulting in deaths of 16,600 civilians and 5,200 security personnel. He said it was a matter of pride for the state police that it eliminated about 21,000 militants and recovered about 30,000 AK rifles. Besides, 12.5 tonnes of RDX and over 31 tonnes of other explosives and over 60,000 grenades have been seized, he added.  

· JANUARY 2009 SAW MORE VIOLENCE

16 MILITANTS, 9 TROOPS AND 1 CIVILIAN KILLED

7 MILITANTS KILLED, NO DAMAGE TO ARMY IN JAN 2008

Jan 31: After 2008 was ‘declared’ most peaceful year in Kashmir in two decades’ by security agencies, the trends in the first month of 2009 have indicated the violent incidents are on higher side. A senior police officer told media that against five encounters in the first month of 2008, six gun battles have taken place in the Valley from January 1, 2009.

 “Seven militants were killed in five encounters in the first 31 days of 2008. However, during the first month of 2009, the death toll stood at 26,” he said.

The police officer said that 16 militants, nine troopers and a civilian were killed in different militancy related incidents this year so far. The 2009 was greeted by two fierce encounters. One gunfight took place at Botengo, Sopore in which two militants were killed while two troopers were killed in another fierce gunfight at Mendhar in Poonch district. The encounter lasted for nine days and all the holed up militants, much to the embarrassment of security agencies, managed to escape from the three-tier cordon of troops.

On January 28, three fierce encounters rattled North Kashmir’s Baramulla, Kupwara and Bandipora districts. A top Lashkar-e-Toiba commander identified as Abu Hamza and a trooper were killed in 18-hour long encounter at Sopore, Baramulla. Two more militants and an army man were killed in a separate gunfight at Ayatmullah, Bandipora while a Lashkar militant was killed and two troopers injured in an encounter at village Baki Hakar, Handwara.

· 'ARMY TO STAY' TILL GOVERNMENT FEELS PEACE HAS RETURNED

Jan 31: Army chief General Deepak Kapoor while addressing media at the Army’s 15 Corps Headquarters in Srinagar said the army would remain deployed in Jammu and Kashmir till India faces challenges to its sovereignty, the border issues are settled, and the state and central government’s feel the situation has normalized to the extent that it is time to call army back to barracks.

The army chief said, “As soon as the state and national level authorities feel that peace has returned to the state army would be happy to go back to the barracks. Its presence would remain to ensure that challenges to our sovereignty are met.”

	Date
	Custodial / Extra Judicial Killings
	Women Killed
	Children Killed
	Alleged Disappearances

	Jan 05
	-
	-
	-
	1

	Jan 09
	-
	-
	-
	1

	Jan 13
	-
	-
	-
	1

	Jan 16
	-
	-
	1
	-

	Jan 18
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Jan 31
	1
	-
	-
	-

	Total
	1
	1
	1
	3


ENQUIRIES ORDERED IN THE MONTH OF JANUARY 2009 IN HUMAN RIGHTS VIOLATION CASES
	Nature of incident 
	Victim’s details 
	Agency Involved
	Enquiry ordered by 
	Brief details of incidents



	Killing
	Abdur Rashid Reshi,40

S/O: Late. Abdul Ahad Reshi

R/O: Veer Saran,Pahalgam
	Army
	Army ordered a high level inquiry into the incident.


	On Jan 6-09: According to police the incident occurred when the 40-year old Abdur Rashid Reshi son of late Abdul Ahad Reshi crossed main gate of the Commander 31 Sub Area’s residence on Gupkar Road. The troopers fired several bullets at Reshi, killing him on the spot. Pertinently, the houses of many VIPs, including Chief Minister Omar Abdullah and NC president Dr Farooq Abdullah is few hundreds metres away from the spot. The Senior Superintendent of Police, Srinagar, Syed Afadul Mujtaba, confirmed the deceased was deaf and dumb.

“Preliminary investigations revealed that the person crossed the barbed wires, scaled the boundary wall and entered the Army camp. As the deceased was hard of hearing, he crossed the two gates despite being challenged. Mistaking him as a militant, the troopers fired upon him resulting in his on the spot death,” the SSP said.

 
On Jan 7-09: The Army ordered a high level inquiry into the incident.

	Beating

and ransacking houses
	
	CRPF
	On Jan 16: Government ordered inquiry into the incident. An official spokesman said that SSP, Srinagar will be the Inquiry Officer, who has been asked to locate the erring officials of the CRPF Company and submit his report within three days. He said the CRPF Company involved in the incident has been moved out of the downtown area.    
	Jan 16-09: The paramilitary CRPF personnel went berserk at Saraf-Kadal in downtown Srinagar during an anti-Israeli protest and smashed the window panes of many houses and shops besides beating scores of people. Like other parts of Valley, youth of Saraf-Kadal staged anti-Israeli demonstrations after Friday prayers. The protestors clashed with police and CRPF personnel, who were deployed in strength in the area. During the clashes, the CRPF personnel went berserk and beat up dozens of youth and smashed the window panes of houses, shops and parked vehicles.

A resident of Saraf Kadal Muhammad Maqbool alleged that the cops damaged the properties and beat up several persons. “It was horrible to see that the CRPF men beating people and smashing the window panes of the houses and parked vehicles,” he said.

Another resident alleged the Para-military personnel barged into the residential houses and beat the inmates. “Before leaving the houses, they also damaged the window and glass panes,” he said.

Later, people of the area staged a demonstration and demanded that action should be taken against the Para-military personnel. They also demanded that the CRPF Company should be shifted from the area.

Jan 17-09: Police registered a case against an assistant commander, Rajinder Singh of Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) on the directions of the Inspector General of Police, Kashmir, Dr B Srinivas whose troopers ransacked houses and beat-up civilians during anti-Israel protests even as several persons were injured in clashes between police and protesters on Jan 16 (Friday).


	Beating and harassing
	Sumo driver Safeer Ahmad War of Batpora and his two passengers, then barging into a police post in Teetwal and harassing the officials on duty
	Troopers of army’s  8/GR posted in Karnah
	On Jan 16: The SSP sent an investigation team headed by DSP Shabir Ahmad and ordered an inquiry into the incident. Police sources said the cases have been registered under the FIR NOs 2/2009 and 3/2009.


	Jan 16-09: Police sources told media that a Sumo bearing registration No JK09/4502 driven by Safeer Ahmad War of Batpora was on way to Tangdhar when it was stopped by the army personnel posted at Chamkot check post. Sources said the troopers ordered the driver and the passengers to come out. “Soon they started thrashing War and his two passengers without any reason,” they alleged. 

 After beating the trio, the troopers ordered them to leave the spot. “The victims straightaway went to the police post, Teetwal, and were only narrating their tale when a captain of the army posted at the check post, SS Singhni, along with a group of soldiers entered the post, dragged the victims out in front of the police officials and started beating them again. They even threatened the police officials present of dire consequences while leaving the spot,” sources said.

· Police registered two cases against the troopers of army’s  8/GR posted in Karnah allegedly for thrashing a Sumo driver and his two passengers, then barging into a police post in Teetwal and harassing the officials on duty.


KILLINGS IN THE MONTH OF JANUARY-2009

	 DATE
	SOLDIERS
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS
	OTHERS

	JAN 01
	2
	6
	-
	-

	JAN 02
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 03
	1
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 04
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 05
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 06
	-
	-
	1
	-

	JAN 07
	1
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 08
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 09
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 10
	1
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 11
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 12
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 13
	2
	2
	-
	-

	JAN 14
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 15
	-
	1
	-
	-

	JAN 16
	-
	-
	2
	-

	JAN 17
	-
	-
	1
	-

	JAN 18
	-
	-
	1
	-

	JAN 19
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 20
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 21
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 22
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 23
	-
	2
	-
	-

	JAN 24
	-
	2
	-
	-

	JAN 25
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 26
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 27
	-
	1
	-
	-

	JAN 28
	2
	4
	-
	-

	JAN 29
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 30
	-
	-
	-
	-

	JAN 31
	-
	-
	1
	-

	TOTAL
	9
	18
	6
	0

	                                                                                    IN TOTAL  
	  33  Killings



CHRONOLOGY OF INCIDENTS

Jan 1: Police claimed to have killed two militants identified as Bilal Ahmad Mala, a local and Abu Bhakti, a Pakistani national in Botengo, Sopore.Meanwhile, four militants and two army personnel were killed in Chatral area of Mendhar tehsil of Poonch district. The army personnel were identified as Naik Gopal and JCO Subedar Rakesh Kumar and of the slain militants was identified as Jaish-e-Mohammad (JeM) area commander Abdul Gul.

Jan 2: At least 20 people including three policemen were injured in the clashes at Nowhatta that erupted when police stopped a march organized to show solidarity with nearly 400 Palestinians mowed down by Israeli occupation forces in Gaza in the past week.

Jan 3: An SPO was killed in an encounter between militants and security forces in forest area of Mendhar in Poonch district. He was identified as Naresh Kumar.

Jan 4: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Jan 5: Two army jawans sustained splinter injuries in an encounter between the security forces and the militants in Bein forests of Bhati Dhar adjoining Mendhar near the Line of Control (LoC) in Poonch district.

Jan 6: A 45 year old civilian was allegedly shot dead by an Army guard in 31 Sub area at Gupkar Road when he was entering towards an Army camp. He was identified as Abdul Rashid Reshi R/o Pahalgam. No weapon was recovered from him. 

Jan 7: A jawan of Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) allegedly committed suicide by shooting himself with his service weapon in Poonch district of Jammu and Kashmir. He was identified as Pargat Singh (number 881330349), resident of village Tikri Barnala district in Punjab, who was posted in 193 Battalion of D Coy.

Jan 8: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Jan 9: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Jan 10: A Paramilitary CRPF trooper identified as Parveen Kumar was allegedly shot dead by his colleague Kundan Lal in company headquarters of 93 battalion F- Company at Achabal, South Kashmir’s Islamabad district.

Jan 11: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Jan 12: An army trooper was injured in an encounter with militants at Kishtwar.

Jan 13: Two cops of Jammu & Kashmir Police and two militants of Lashker-e-Toiba (LeT) outfit were killed in an encounter between the militants and the police in Tiryath area of Dharamsal in Rajouri district. The slain militants have been identified as Abu Tallah and Ishfaq both of LeT cadre. The slain policemen were identified as Special Police Officer (SPO) Nissar Hussain posted with SOG and Constable Mushtaq Shah. Meanwhile, at least three persons were injured in a grenade explosion at Batmaloo.

Jan 14: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Jan 15: Police claimed to have killed a militant in an encounter with a joint party of troops and police in frontier district of Kupwara.

The slain militant was identified as Tamim, a top ranking commander of Al-badr.

Jan 16: One minor boy identified as Tafail Ahmed, 12, son of Mohammad Iqbal resident of Mohalla Chadyal died on the spot when an explosive device burst at Mohalla Chandyal in Sangoit area of Mendhar under the jurisdiction of Police S Gursai of district Poonch.Meanwhile, a Rehbar-e-Taleem (ReT) teacher identified as Mohammad Aslam (40) ,son of Ghulam Hussain Wani  who was allegedly fired upon by security forces at Kukrewas in December 13,2008,died at the Government Medical College Hospital,Doda.
Jan 17: A civilian identified as Mohan Lal son of Bholu Ram was killed and his brother-in-law Om Prakash son of Jagdish was injured when an explosive device went off when they were boiling scrap in their house at village Jaganu in Udhampur district.

Jan 18: A woman identified as Janti Begum was killed when service rifle of a Special Police Officer (SPO) Wali Mohammad Khan went off accidentally at chearkote in Rajwar area in Kupwara district. Police has registered a case and started investigations.

Jan 19: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Jan 20: Police claimed to have recovered a body of 45-year-old person from Kulgam. The deceased has been identified as Muhammad Yousuf Malik. The body was recovered near his house at Danew-Kandimarg in Damhal-Hanjipora.

Jan 21: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Jan 22: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Jan 23: A top commander of Hizbul Mujahideen and his associate were killed in a gunfight with troops in Doda district. The slain militants were identified as Zahir-ud-Din Din Khanday code Sulaiman, son of Ghulam Mohammad Khanday of Chilli Gandoh and Sajjad Hussain alias Bhatt son of Ghulam Qadir Ganai of Beli Chinara Gandoh. Meanwhile, over a dozen protesters including a journalist and three policemen were injured in the clashes between the police and the protestors. The people were protesting against the re-imposition of Public Safety Act against several pro-freedom leaders.

Jan 24: Two unidentified militants suspected to be affiliated with Lashkar-e-Toiba (LeT) were killed and a trooper was injured in an encounter with security forces at Shah Nagri in Handwara area of Kupwara district in North Kashmir.

Jan 25: Police claimed to have killed two militants in a gunfight with troops in Banihal tehsil of Ramban district. The slain militants were identified as Kari Zuber,divisional commander of Hizbul Mujahideen, and his associate Nasir Ahmed, both residents of Khari Banihal.But the defence spokesman northern command Colonel Kachariya said that army never claimed that there was an encounter, neither did we claim to have killed two militants.
Jan 26: Police claimed to have found dead body of Abdul Hamid Jat son of Kak Jat resident of Zampathri Keller who was missing from last four days, police found his dead body near crop field.

Jan 27: Police claimed to have killed a militant while two policemen and a trooper were injured in a gunfight in frontier district of Kupwara.The slain militant was identified as Abu Sakhiyan.

Jan 28: Two militants of Jaish-e-Muhammad and a trooper of 57 Rashtriya Rifles were killed in an encounter in Ayatmullah village in Bandipora.The slain militants were identified as Waseem Bilal, Divisional commander of Jaish-e-Muhammad and his associate, Shakeel,the slain trooper was identified as Mohammad Amin Bhat.Meanwhile, a militant identified as Abu Hamza, operational commander of Lashkar-e-Toiba, and a trooper identified as Sohan Kumar, of 52-Rashtriya Riffles were killed in an encounter at Amargah, Sopore.In another incident, Police claimed to have killed a Lashkar-e-Toiba militant in an encounter with 21 RR and SOG personnel at village Baki Hakar,Handwara,Kupwara.The slain militant was identified as Abu Abdul Rehman.

Jan 29: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Jan 30: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Jan 31: Troops of 51 Rashtriya Rifles killed Ali Mohammad Bhat,  son of Ghulam Rasool Bhat of Vewan, Bandipora in custody. Ali was detained by 51 RR on Jan 29 and his dead body was handed over to villagers on Jan 31.Meanwhile, police and army on Jan 28, claimed that they killed two militants of Jaish-e-Muhammad outfit in Bandipora, but on Jan 31, body of one of them was exhumed from a grave and handed over to his family who insist the youth had gone missing in August 2008 during Amarnath land agitation. The deceased has been identified as Afaq Ahmad of Bomai, Sopore. The Superintendent of Police Bandipora Sheikh Junaid, however, said Afaq “was associated with Jaish-e-Muhammad and Abu Bakr was his code name.”





On August 23, 2008, Afaq Ahmad Bhat son Mohammad Shafi of Edipora Bomai, Sopore district Baramulla disappeared. 





On January 28-2009, army and police claimed that they killed two Pakistani militants of Jaish-e-Muhammad (JeM) in an encounter at Bandipora.





Afaq was often harassed by the troopers of 22 RR camped in Bomai since he got engaged in preaching Islam among the youth of our village.








Afaq actively participated in mass agitation during Amarnath Land row.
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SOME FACTS ABOUT PSA


The law dates back to 70s and its first victim was the president of Kashmir Motor Drivers Association (KMDA), Ghulam Nabi. In 1977 elections Ghulam Nabi contested on Janta Party ticket against Sheikh Muhammad Abdullah.  Soon after the elections the government introduced the Public Safety Ordinance, and on 8 April 1978 it became an act after it was passed by the state legislature. Ghulam Nabi was its first victim. But in 1978 Justice M.R.A Ansari was the Chief Justice of the High Court. He heard the case and within a month revoked the order.


 In 1985 former Chief Minister Ghulam Muhammad Shah made the Act stringent by inserting section 10 (A).


 Mian Qayoom says earlier the PSA could be challenged in the court if out of ten charges, nine were proved against the accused but one of the charges was vague.


 “But after insertion of section 10-(A) situation totally changed. Now if one ground proved correct and nine incorrect the detention could not be challenged on its vagueness,” he added.


 The amendment made courts virtually defunct forcing the Bar to challenge it. The High Court later ruled that any order of detention could be challenged in the Court of law.


 In 1990, when governor rule was imposed in the state, PSA got another amendment. The then governor Jag Mohan inserted section 10 in the act. Now the prisoners could be detained in any jail in India.


 Bar challenged it in the High Court and High Court revoked the section and questioned its legality. The state went to Supreme Court and the Supreme Court stayed the High Court judgment. Since then the matter is pending for the order.





Jan 23: The re-imposition of Public Safety Act against several pro-freedom leaders evoked massive protests in downtown Srinagar against the state Government. Over a dozen protesters including a journalist and three policemen were injured in the clashes between the police and the protestors.


 Youths took out protest demonstrations at Nowhatta, Rajouri Kadal and Gojwara Chowk to protest against the imposition of PSA against Masrat Alam, Bitta Karatey. 


The protestors were holding banners and raised anti-India and anti-CRPF slogans. The youths were intercepted by a heavy contingent of the police and CRPF troopers. The police fired in the air to disperse the protestors after baton-charge and tear smoke shells injured almost a dozen people. A videographer associated with Press TV, Zubair Ahmed, was injured when a stone hit him. According to police sources, three policemen were also injured in the incidents.


 SP North Srinagar, Abdul Waheed told media, “We have no official figures about the injured (civilians) but three policemen have been injured.”





WOMEN/CHILDREN KILLED





Jan 16: One minor boy identified as Tafail Ahmad, 12, son of Mohammad Iqbal of Mohalla chadyal died on the spot when an explosive device burst at Mohalla Chandyal in Sangoit area of Mendhar under the jurisdiction of Police S Gursai of district Poonch.


Reports said that some children while playing in a field spotted a ball like device and one of them started fiddling with it. It exploded in his hands resulting in his on spot death.





Jan 18: A woman was killed when service rifle of a Special Police Officer (SPO) went off accidentally in Kupwara district .The service rifle of SPO Wali Mohammad Khan went off accidentally as a result of which a bullet hit Janti Begum at Chearkote in Rajwar area in North Kashmir's Kupwara district.
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